






 
 

MEETING DATE:    November 15, 2016                                              AGENDA ITEM:   B-1 

 
TITLE: 
Discuss Agenda Items 

FY2015-2016 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 
• Capstone 1:  Most engaged citizens in America 

o Goal 1:  Achieve and sustain a healthy relationship between the organization’s stakeholders. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Kevin Hugman, City Manager 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 15, 2016                                                 AGENDA ITEM:  B-2A 
 
 
TITLE: 
Receive a presentation, discuss and give feedback to City Staff on a proposition to dedicate an item of public property in 
recognition of the sister city relationship, as well as to expand the sister city relationship, with Monasterolo di Savigliano. 
 
FY 2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN:   
N/A 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Charles Smith, Assistant City Manager 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
In March 1997, a semi-formal visit to the City of Duncanville, from the City of Monasterolo di Savigliano, was hosted by 
Mayor Ed Purcel.  This visit included the Italian Mayor of Monasterolo di Savigliano, Antonio Prochietto, and Italian 
dignitaries who were recognized at a reception at Duncanville City Hall. 

The following year, the Duncanville City Council passed a resolution in support of the “twin-city” relationship.  In July of 
1998, a 13-member delegation including Mayor Glenn Repp and Texas Senator Jane Nelson visited Monasterolo di 
Savigliano where they participated in a ceremony instituting the relationship.  A proclamation from Monasterolo di 
Savigliano hangs in the City Council Briefing Room, also celebrating this visit. 

In 1999, a delegation of 39 Italians visited the City of Duncanville to further the relationship.  A ceremony was held at 
City Hall on September 28th where gifts were exchanged. 

Recently, in March 2016, Monasterolo di Savigliano Mayor, Marco Cavaglia, visited the City of Duncanville where both 
he and his wife were hosted at City Hall.  Upon returning home, and during a visit by Texas Senator Jane Nelson, an area 
within a tower of the historic castle, which serves as Monasterolo di Savigliano’s City Hall, was named in honor of the 
City of Duncanville and many items acquired during Mayor Cavaglia’s visit are on display there. 

The Mayor has expressed an interest in sending a delegation to Monasterolo di Savigliano, and evaluating additional steps 
to further enhance our sister city relationship.  City Staff has evaluated some options and wishes to discuss them with City 
Council to receive feedback and direction. 

The City of Duncanville and Monasterolo di Savigliano are not members of Sister Cities International, which was created 
in 1956 by President Eisenhower in order to create a network of citizens who would “champion for peace and prosperity.”  
Membership in Sister Cities International is not necessary, however, in order for Monasterolo di Savigliano and the City 
of Duncanville to enjoy a sister city relationship. 

Additionally, a couple of City Council members have expressed an interest in responding to this display from our sister 
city, by dedicating a piece of public property in the name of Monasterolo di Savigliano.  Staff has conducted some 
preliminary studies and wishes to approach City Council with their ideas for feedback and whether or not Council wishes 
staff to proceed. 

STAFF REPORT 



POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The policy impact of the various travel options range from minimal policy impact (ad hoc exchanges and trips to 
Monasterolo di Savigliano) to more significant (joining Sister Cities International).  However, each choice has benefits 
and budgetary implications. 
 
Depending on the nature of the dedication, policy impacts could be negligible (such as painting a mural on a wall in City 
Hall) to potentially significant (naming an overpass after Monasterolo di Savigliano requires TxDOT involvement). 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
General Fund 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends receiving a presentation, discussing and giving feedback to City Staff on a proposition to dedicate an 
item of public property in recognition of the sister city relationship, as well as to expand the sister city relationship, with 
Monasterolo di Savigliano. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
B-2 2017 SCI Member Application 



2017 Membership Applica on 

City/County Popula on  

 Under 5,000 

 5,000‐10,000 

 10,000‐25,000 

 25,000‐50,000 

 50,000‐100,000 

 100,000‐300,000 

 300,000‐500,000 

 500,000‐1,000,000 

 1,000,000 and above 

Dues 

$180 

$295 

$425 

$590 

$780 

$990 

$1,325 

$1,835 

$2,190 

Annual Dues (Please check one) 

Primary Contact Informa on 

_____________           _____________________________________________        _________________________________________________________          _________________________________________________       

Saluta on         First Name Last Name Title  

_________________________________________________________________          ______________________________________________________________________        _________________________________________ 

Organiza on     Address   City 

___________        ________________________        _________________________________________________          ___________________________________________________________________________ 

State           Zip code     Phone number   Email address

Are you a city employee?    Yes            No     

If not, please enter your city’s contact informa on in the box above. 

Billing informa on (if different from primary contact informa on) 

_____________           _____________________________________________        _________________________________________________________          _________________________________________________       

Saluta on         First Name Last Name Title  

_________________________________________________________________          ______________________________________________________________________        _________________________________________ 

Organiza on     Address   City 

___________        ________________________        _________________________________________________          ___________________________________________________________________________ 

State              Zip code     Phone number  Email address 

Do you need an invoice?       Yes            No    

Payment Method Check (make payable to Sister Ci es Interna onal) Visa   MasterCard    American Express 

__________________________________________________________     ____________/____________     _____________________          __________________________________________________________________________ 

Card No.      Expira on Date         CC Security Code       Cardholder Name 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Cardholder Signature

915 15TH STREET NW · 4TH FLOOR · WASHINGTON, DC 20005 · TEL: 202.347.8630 · WWW.SISTERCITIES.ORG 

Community  Informa on 

___________________________________________________        __________     ________________________
City/County    State             Popula on size 

Does your city currently have a sister city?     Yes            No     

City Contact Informa on 

_____________          ____________________________________        __________________________________________________  

Saluta on        First Name    Last Name 

______________________________       __________________________________           ________________________________________ 

Title           Phone number  Email address

Please send your completed applica on to info@sisterci es.org or mail to:  
Sister Ci es Interna onal, 915 15th Street NW, 4th Floor, Washington, DC, 20005 

initiator:afox@sistercities.org;wfState:distributed;wfType:email;workflowId:72711c1f0b48924c821e9dc21a3e0fa9



2017 Member Benefits 

Your Switchboard to the World 

 Sister Ci es Networking: At Sister Ci es Interna onal,
we believe in peer‐to‐peer learning. Want to host a youth 
exchange? Lead a business delega on? We can connect 
you with other experienced members for an exchange of 
ideas to help you find solu ons. 

 Connect with the Diploma c Corps: Sister Ci es Interna‐
onal works closely with the U.S. Department of State 

and its diplomats as well foreign embassies in the U.S. Let 
us connect you with the right officials and help you get 
the answers and support you need. 

 Annual Membership Directory: Be featured in the Annu‐
al Directory, Sister Ci es Interna onal’s flagship publica‐

on! This lis ng of all member ci es and their partner‐
ships is distributed to our en re network, municipal and 
federal governments, and the diploma c community. 

Programs and Services 

 Ci es Seeking Ci es: Looking for a sister city? Our Ci es
Seeking Ci es program provides you with dedicated staff 
assistance and the necessary connec ons to municipal 
officials, twinning organiza ons, and the diploma c com‐
munity to help you find a partner city. 

 Governance and Policy Services: Confused about how to
start a sister city organiza on, structure your bylaws, or 
establish other policies to lay the founda on for a sister 
city program? We will guide you at every step as you es‐
tablish and grow your partnerships.  

 Young Ar sts & Authors Showcase: Open to all youth in
member ci es, the Showcase is a chance for them to 
sub‐mit artwork, essays, poems, short film, and 
photography inspired by an annual theme. Winners 
receive cash prizes and top entries tour the U.S. 

 High School Homestay: This exchange program enables
member ci es to host high school students for a year or 
semester. We assist with processing exchange visas for 
the youth and makes it a simple and rewarding experi‐
ence for students and host families. 

 Annual Awards: The Awards highlight sister city pro‐
gramming excellence in a number of compe ve catego‐
ries and programma c areas. 

Telling Your Story 

 Share Your Story: Let us tell your story to the world. We publi‐
cize your success on our blog, the SCI website, social media, 
and press outreach. 

 Member Profiles: Show off your sister city program with a cus‐
tomizable member profile as well as profiles for all of your sister 
city partnerships.  

 Event & Delega on Promo on: Need help promo ng an up‐
coming inbound or outbound delega on? We can help spread 
the word through targeted emails, social media, and press out‐
reach. 

 Crisis Communica ons & Media Rela ons: Interna onal events
can catch any communica ons team off guard. We can guide you 
on how to effec vely represent your program in mes of crisis or 
controversy. Our media partnerships and media outreach can 
ensure that your ac vi es get the a en on they deserve. 

Providing Resources that Ma er 

 Visa Consulta ons: Worried about an upcoming delega on?
Get pro bono consulta ons from immigra on lawyers for ques‐

ons regarding inbound delega ons or visa applica ons. 

 Insurance: Get access to discounted traveler’s insurance for
individuals or groups through Sister Ci es Interna onal’s part‐
nership with Seven Corners. 

 Medical Services: Sister Ci es Interna onal has teamed up with
Passport Health to provide members with discounted immuniza‐

ons and other medical services. 

 Cer ficates: Commemorate a new sister ci es partnership or
anniversary with our custom‐made cer ficates. 

 Toolkits and Templates: Get access to handy guidelines, tem‐
plates, and best prac ces for exchanges, policies, and other top‐
ics relevant to sister city program development. 

 Grants Database: Sister Ci es Interna onal provides members
with informa on on opportuni es from private founda ons and 
public organiza ons to help you find resources to expand your 
program. 

 Webinars: Build key skills and hear from experts in our webinar
series. Topics include grant‐wri ng, fundraising, and volunteer 
recruitment. 

915 15TH STREET NW · 4TH FLOOR · WASHINGTON, DC 20005 · TEL: 202.347.8630 · WWW.SISTERCITIES.ORG 

Sister Ci es Interna onal supports private ci zens, local organiza ons, and municipal officials who conduct exchanges 
and ac vi es under the umbrella of the sister ci es movement. Every day, we strengthen and grow the sister ci es net‐

work by providing support to our members through programs, grants, services, and networking opportuni es.  



 
 

MEETING DATE:    November 15, 2016                                             AGENDA ITEM:  ES-1 

 
TITLE: 
The City Council shall convene into Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, 
Personnel Matters, to interview applicants and discuss appointments to the Duncanville Community and Economic 
Development Corporation Board and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Kevin Hugman, City Manager 

 

 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 

MEETING DATE:    November 15, 2016                  AGENDA ITEM:  R-1A 
 

TITLE: 
Mayor’s Report. 

FY2015-2016 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 
• Capstone 1:  Most engaged citizens in America 

o Goal 1:  Achieve and sustain a healthy relationship between the organization’s stakeholders. 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Kevin Hugman, City Manager 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 

MEETING DATE:    November 15, 2016                                       AGENDA ITEM:  R-1B 
 

TITLE: 
Councilmembers’ Reports. 
 

FY2015-2016 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 
• Capstone 1:  Most engaged citizens in America 

o Goal 1:  Achieve and sustain a healthy relationship between the organization’s stakeholders. 
 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Kevin Hugman, City Manager 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 

MEETING DATE:    November 15, 2016                                        AGENDA ITEM:  R-1C 
 

TITLE: 
City Manager’s Report. 
 

FY2015-2016 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 
• Capstone 1:  Most engaged citizens in America 

o Goal 1:  Achieve and sustain a healthy relationship between the organization’s stakeholders. 
 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Kevin Hugman, City Manager 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 
MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016                 AGENDA ITEM:   R-2A 
 
TITLE:   
Presentation of the Keep Duncanville Beautiful November 2016 Business Beautification Award Plaque and Proclamation 
to the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce located at 300 E Wheatland Road. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Timothy Hamilton, Parks Superintendent and KDB Staff Liaison 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The Keep Duncanville Beautiful (KDB) Board members are charged with the responsibility of creating and implementing 
programs that will encourage beautification within Duncanville.  The Business Beautification Award, formerly known as 
the Property of the Month Award, was designed to fill this goal for commercial property recognition.  Following 
nomination by the KDB Board, the City Council approved the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce located at 300 E. 
Wheatland Road as the Business Beautification Award recipient at their November 1, 2016 regular meeting, Resolution 
No. 2016-11014I.  A representative will be present to accept the plaque and proclamation on behalf of the business.   

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Up to one commercial building in Duncanville is recognized each quarter for significant improvements to the exterior 
portion of a building, landscape improvements, and/or long term maintenance of the commercial property that exemplifies 
high quality standards.  Award recipients receive recognition at a regular City Council meeting; an article in the City 
newsletter, the Champion; and a sign to display at their place of business for the month. 
 
The Keep Duncanville Beautiful (KDB) Board nominates the Business Beautification Award.  The property must be in 
good standing with the City’s Code Enforcement and Building Inspections Departments.  Final approval by City Council 
is required.   
 
The KDB Board follows the criteria identified below: 

 Property must be retail/professional office/commercial/industrial or other business use. 
 Property must be located within the city limits of Duncanville, Texas. 
 Significant exterior improvements and/or superior maintenance of the property must be made to the property, or 

the property is new construction. 
 Improvements can include new landscaping, repainting a building, paving a parking lot, adding awnings, new 

signage, etc. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Funds are allocated in the Economic Development/Keep Duncanville Beautiful budget for related expenditures; however, 
if the recipient is a non-profit the funds are allocated in the Parks budget. 
   
RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

 

STAFF REPORT 



 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Proclamation 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Duncanville is committed to improving the physical 

quality of community life; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Keep Duncanville Beautiful Board was established to promote this 

commitment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of the Keep Duncanville Beautiful Board is to empower 

Duncanville citizens and businesses to take responsibility for 
enhancing their community environment; and  

 
WHEREAS, each quarter the Keep Duncanville Beautiful Board recognizes one 

commercial property within the City for significant improvements to 
the exterior portion of the property, landscape improvements, 
and/or long term maintenance of the property that exemplifies high 
quality standards; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce located at 300 E Wheatland 

Road has been selected as the Business Beautification Award 
recipient for November 2016. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, David L. Green, Mayor of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
do hereby urge all residents to join me in congratulating the Duncanville Chamber of 
Commerce located at 300 E Wheatland Road and commending this business for 
contributing to the beautification of our City. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I 
have hereunto set my hand and 
caused the Seal of the City of 
Duncanville to be affixed this 
15th day of November, 2016. 



 
 
MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016                 AGENDA ITEM:   R-2B 
 
TITLE:   
Proclamation recognizing November, 2016 as Native American Heritage Month. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Kevin Hugman, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
On August 3, 1990, President George H. W. Bush declared the month of November as National                                  
American Indian Heritage Month, thereafter commonly referred to as Native American Heritage Month.  This 
commemorative month aims to provide a platform for Native American people in the United States to share their culture, 
tradition, music, crafts, dance, and ways and concepts of life as well as their concerns and solutions for building bridges of 
understanding and friendship in the local area.  
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The City of Duncanville recognizes various organizations, groups, and individuals for their outstanding contributions to 
the community by Proclamation. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
   
RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Proclamation 

 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, on August 3, 1990 President George H. W. Bush declared the month of November 

as National American Indian Heritage Month, thereafter commonly referred to as 
Native American Heritage Month; and 

 
WHEREAS, the President authorized Federal, State and local Governments, groups and 

organizations and the people of the United States to observe such month with 
appropriate programs, ceremonies and activities; and 

 
WHEREAS, this commemorative month aims to provide a platform for Native American 

people in the United States to share their culture, tradition, music, crafts, dance, 
and ways and concepts of life; and  

 
WHEREAS, this gives Native American people the opportunity to express to their community, 

and to the city, county and state officials their concerns and solutions for building 
bridges of understanding and friendship in the local area. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, David L. Green, Mayor of the City of Duncanville, Texas do hereby proclaim 
the month of November, 2016 as 

Native American Heritage Month 

in the City of Duncanville, and I urge all citizens to support local efforts to observe such month with 
appropriate programs, ceremonies, and activities. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the 
Seal of the City of Duncanville, Texas to 
be affixed this 15th day of November, 
2016. 

 



 
 
 
MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016                  AGENDA ITEM: R-2C 
 
 
TITLE:  
Proclamation designating November 26, 2016, as “Small Business Saturday”. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Jessica James, Director of Economic Development 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Small Business Saturday is an American shopping holiday held on the Saturday after Thanksgiving and during one of the 
busiest shopping periods of the year. First observed in Roslindale Village, Massachusetts on November 27, 2010, it is a 
counterpart to Black Friday and Cyber Monday, which feature big box retail and e-commerce stores respectively. By 
contrast, “Small Business Saturday” encourages holiday shoppers to patronize brick and mortar businesses that are small 
and local. It was originally created by American Express to support small business, but has since expanded into different 
organizations and cities across the United States in an effort to increase support for small businesses and shopping local. 
 
The purpose of the City of Duncanville recognizing "Small Business Saturday" is to celebrate and support small 
businesses that create jobs, boost the economy, invigorate neighborhoods in our community, and to encourage 
residents to shop local.  
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The City of Duncanville recognizes various organizations and programs that make positive contributions to the 
community by Proclamation. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
There is no cost associated with this Proclamation. 
   
RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Proclamation 
 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, small business is the cornerstone of our free enterprise system and since the birth of 

this country has represented opportunity, independence, and the fulfillment of 
dreams for generations of Americans; and 

WHEREAS, small business owners who work long hours, juggling family and career 
responsibilities and serving as community volunteers, are integral to our country's 
prosperity and to the vibrancy of our community.  These entrepreneurs are 
fundamental to our economy.  Through the opportunities offered by the men and 
women who own and operate small businesses, many of our citizens are able to 
pursue their dreams of a better life; and 

WHEREAS, to recognize "Small Business Saturday" which is Saturday, November 26, a day to 
celebrate and support small businesses that create jobs, boost the economy, 
invigorate neighborhoods in our community, and to encourage Shop Local; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Duncanville wishes to recognize small businesses for the important role 
they play in keeping our local economy strong. 

 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, David L. Green, Mayor of the City of Duncanville, Texas do hereby proclaim 
November 26, 2016 as 

SMALL BUSINESS SATURDAY 

in the City of Duncanville, and urge all our citizens to join with us in this observance, as we celebrate the 
accomplishments of small business owners and their employees and encourage the development of new small 
businesses. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal 
of the City of Duncanville, Texas to be 
affixed this 15st day of November, 2016 

 



 
 
MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016                 AGENDA ITEM:   R-2D 
 
TITLE:   
Receive the 2016 Delinquent Tax Performance Report from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Richard Summerlin, Finance Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Linebarger Goggan Blair, & Sampson, LLP is the firm the City uses for collection of delinquent property taxes.  This 
report is a review of services provided and activity from July 2015 through September 2016.  An analysis of the City’s tax 
roll is included along with the status of City of Duncanville delinquent accounts. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
N/A 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
   
RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
PowerPoint by Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP. 

 

STAFF REPORT 



Linebarger Goggan Blair 

& Sampson, LLP

Prepared for the:

Duncanville City Council and 
Kevin Hugman, City Manager

City of Duncanville
Delinquent Tax Performance Report

November 15, 2016



About Linebarger

2

National Law Firm
43 Offices Nationwide

31 Offices in Texas

40 Years of Collecting Delinquent 
Governmental Receivables

Providing Funding for 
Essential Public Services

32-Year Presence in Dallas County
Representing Duncanville since July 2001



Our Services

Skip Tracing

3

Cost-Free Program to the City
Linebarger attorney fees are legal “add-on” paid by delinquent taxpayers

Litigation and pursuit of pre- & post-
judgment remedies

Inbound and Outbound 
Coordinated Call Campaigns 

Mailing Collection Notices

Bankruptcy representation

Facilitating PaymentCollecting Taxes

Working through inquiries
and disputes



Program Activities & Results (July 2015 – September 2016)

4

51 Lawsuits Filed - $149,634

38 Lawsuits Disposed - $207,437

14 Tax Sales Set - $64,746

119 Site Visits - $153,427

29 Soundbite Campaigns

10 Demand Mailings – 2,154 letters

39 Accounts in Bankruptcy - $111,965

Since July 2015, 
Linebarger has collected

$460,569
for the City of Duncanville

Since our representation began in July 2001, we have collected 

over $7.6 million 
for Duncanville



Tax Roll Analysis & Customized Collection Program

5

• April 1st: Personal Property - BPP

• July 1st: All Property Types - Real, BPP & Mobile Homes

Current Year 2015 

Delinquent Tax Roll 

turned over to 

Linebarger

• Turnover Analysis of 2015 & Prior Delinquent Tax 
Roll

July 2016

Tax Roll Analysis

• Linebarger Customizes 2016-17 Collection Program 
for Duncanville

2016-17

Collection Program



Current Year Turnover Comparison 
(2015 Tax Year vs. 2014 Tax Year)

6

June 30th * Current Collection Rate:
2015 2016

97.72% 97.71%

*  2015 BPP accounts turned over to Linebarger on April 1, 2016

*  2015 Real property & Mobile Home accounts turned over to Linebarger on July 1, 2016

2015 Base Tax turned over to 
Linebarger increased by 

$3,287 or 1.2%

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

200

225

250

Real Property

(420 Accts)

BPP

(252 Accts)

$232,766

$52,295

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

2015 Base Tax - $285,061       2015 Base Tax + P&I - $390,978

2014 Base Tax - $281,774       2014 Base Tax + P&I - $383,873



Tax Roll Analysis by Size of Delinquent Accounts  (as of July 1, 2016)

7

Average Size of Accounts

$45.78 $672.32 $3,685,85 $17,584.20

Distribution of Tax Roll by No. of Accounts
(2015 & Prior Base Tax + P&I)

Distribution of Tax Roll by Dollars Due
(2015 & Prior Base Tax + P&I)

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Total Number of Accounts Due - 1,184

535

444

165

40

$0 - $100 $101 - 1,000 $1,001 - $5,000 Over $5,000 $0

$125,000

$250,000

$375,000

$500,000

$625,000

$750,000

2015 & Prior Total Tax Due - $1,634,536

$24,492

$298,511

$608,165

$703,368

$0 - $100 $101 - 1,000 $1,001 - $5,000 Over $5,000



Status of Accounts in Duncanville (as of Oct 2016)

8

Eligible for 
Collections

14%

Lawsuit
15%

Uncollectible
14%

Pending Action & 
Review
45%

Other
5%

Bankruptcy
7%



Over 65/Disabled and/or Deferral Growth in Duncanville

9

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

$115,367

2004

$411,391

2012

$453,861

2013

$484,351

2014

$541,939

2015

$606,612

2016

6.1%

22.1%

27.8% 28.0%

34.4%
37.1%

Percentage of Total Base Tax & P&I as of July 1st, that is in a status of Over 65/Disabled and/or Deferral.

Growth since 2004:
$491,245 or 426% 



Being a Good Community Partner

10

Heart of Duncanville 5K

Duncanville Education Foundation



Contact Information

11

Bridget Moreno Lopez, Managing Partner

bridget.lopez@lgbs.com  (469) 221-5115

Pamela Pope Johnson, Partner

pamj@lgbs.com  (469) 221-5054

Sandra Tei, Client Liaison

sandrat@lgbs.com (469) 221-5030

Peggy McCormick, Operations Manager

peggym@lgbs.com (469) 221-5060

As always, it is a privilege to serve the 

City of Duncanville



 
 

MEETING DATE:    November 15, 2016                                            AGENDA ITEM:  R-3 
 

TITLE: 

CITIZENS’ INPUT 
 
At this time, two minute comments will be taken from the audience on any topic.  To address the Council, please 
submit a fully-completed request card to the City Secretary prior to the beginning of the Citizens’ Input portion of the 
Council meeting.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot discuss issues raised or 
make any decisions at this time.  Issues may be referred to City Staff for research and possible future action. 
 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 
MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016                                                     AGENDA ITEM:  R-4A 
 
 
TITLE: 
Consider the Minutes for the October 27, 2016 Special City Council Meeting, and the November 1, 2016 Regular City 
Council Meeting. 
 
FY2015-2016 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 

• Goal: N/A   
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Kevin Hugman, City Manager 
Mary E. Jones, City Secretary 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
N/A 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Section 551.021 of the Government Code provides as follows: 

(a) A Governmental body shall prepare and keep minutes or make a tape recording of each open meeting of the 
body. 

(b) The minutes must: 
1. State the subject of each deliberation; and 
2. Indicate the vote, order, decision or other action taken. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve, amend, or correct the minutes of the October 27, 2016 Special City Council Meeting, and the November 1, 2016 
Regular City Council Meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• October 27, 2016 DRAFT Special City Council Meeting Minutes 
• November 1, 2016 DRAFT Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 



1 
 

DUNCANVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
SPECIAL TOWN HALL MEETING 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2016 
DRAFT 

 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
A Special Town Hall Meeting of the Duncanville City Council was called to order on Thursday, October 
27, 2016, at 6:40 p.m. in the Parkview Room at D.L. Hopkins, Jr. Senior Center with a quorum to wit: 
 
 David L. Green Mayor 
 Dennis L. Schwartz Councilmember, District 1  
 Steven Rutherford Mayor Pro Tem, District 2 
 Leslie Thomas Councilmember, District 3 
 Ron Dotson Councilmember, District 4  
 Johnette Jameson Councilmember, District 5  
 Patrick Harvey Councilmember, At-Large 

 
2. Receive a presentation by Larry Cline with Larry Cline Consulting, LLC and City Staff 
Regarding the proposed Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment Zone for the Camp 
Wisdom Road / North Duncanville Road / North Main Street area. 
Mayor Green welcomed those in attendance, explained the purpose of the meeting, and introduced 
Economic Development (ED) Director Jessica James who introduced Larry Cline of Larry Cline 
Consulting, LLC.  Mr. Cline and ED Director James provided a presentation regarding the proposed Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment Zone for the Camp Wisdom Road / North Duncanville Road / 
North Main Street area.   
 
3. Questions & Answers on Presentation. 
Following the presentation, City Manager Hugman distributed and reviewed a list of commonly asked 
questions and answers regarding the proposed TIF and then opened the meeting for questions from those 
in attendance. 
 
4. Discussion. 
Discussion followed. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
     MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

  DUNCANVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2016 
DRAFT 

 
CALL TO ORDER                                                                                 
 
A regular meeting of the Duncanville City Council was called to order on Tuesday, November 1, 2016, at 
6:00 p.m. in the Council Briefing Room at City Hall with a quorum to wit: 
 
 David L. Green Mayor 
 Dennis L. Schwartz Councilmember, District 1  
 Steven Rutherford Mayor Pro Tem, District 2 
 Leslie Thomas Councilmember, District 3 
 Ron Dotson Councilmember, District 4 Arrived 6:09 p.m. 
 Johnette Jameson Councilmember, District 5  
 Patrick Harvey Councilmember, At-Large 
 
WORK SESSION/BRIEFING ITEMS 
 
Item No. B-1 Discuss Agenda Items 
Mayor Green read the item into record and City Manager Hugman reviewed each item.  Discussion 
included:  Item 4C – clarification the funds are for Tyler Technologies; Item 4D – street signs to have 
bolder borders around “Texas” and clarification that the street lights are owned and maintained by Oncor 
and none are LED; Item 4F – staff will research the duplicate location listed; Item 4G – follow-up for 
issues found and rotation of areas evaluated; Item 4H – access to the feedback webpage limited to the 
Police Department and other necessary departments; Item 4I – clarification that funds for the business 
plaque and sign will be out of Parks and Recreation since the recipient is a non-profit; Item 4J – cost of 
coating the ground storage tank will be paid by Duncanville (5/8) and Cedar Hill (3/8) due to purchasing 
the tank from TRA; Item 5A – the public hearing was advertised within the time limits; Item 5B – TIF 
alternative boundaries, projects included, development with TIF vs without, positive effect on 
development of Main Street, redevelopment of the Camp Wisdom Corridor, and request for Council to 
provide direction as to whether to go forward with the TIF, at what percentage, and final approval would 
be done by Ordinance; Item 5C – Chamber HOT funds agreement was budgeted for; Item 5E – request 
for City Council meals to be reimbursed by receipt rather than per diem and that a “guest” should be paid 
for local events rather than “spouse” and suggestion was made to pull the item until the next meeting. 
 
Item No. B-2A Discuss the December and January City Council Regular Meeting dates. 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  Following discussion it was agreed that the December 20, 2016 
regular City Council meeting would be limited to just one item to consider the TIF Ordinance with no 
additional staff reports; and that the January 3, 2017 meeting would be cancelled due to the holiday. 
 
Mayor Green recessed the Briefing Session at 6:54 p.m. for the Council to convene into Executive 
Session. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Item No. ES-1  The City Council shall convene into Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.074 
of the Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, to discuss appointments to the Duncanville 
Community and Economic Development Corporation Board and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 
 
The Council closed the Executive Session and reconvened into the Briefing Session at 7:18 p.m.   
 
The briefing session recessed at 7:18 p.m. 
 
REGULAR SESSION – CONVENE INTO THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
The City Council convened into Regular Session in the Council Chambers at 7:23 p.m. with Mayor Green 
presiding. 
 
The Invocation was led by Rev. Jeff Bergeron, New Life in Christ Lutheran. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge were led by Mayor Green. 
 

 
 



2 
 

REPORTS 
 
Item No. R-1A Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Green spoke regarding the Community in Unity event held in Armstrong Park. 
 
Item No. R-1B Councilmembers’ Reports 
Councilmember Thomas urged everyone to vote. 
 
Councilmember Jameson thanked everyone for attending the City Council Special Town Hall Meeting 
regarding the proposed TIF. 
 
Item No. R-1C City Manger’s Report 
City Manager Hugman spoke regarding the Community in Unity event and thanked the churches and 
pastors that organized the event. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
Item No. R-2A Proclamation recognizing November 6-12, 2016 as Animal Shelter Appreciation 
Week. 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  Councilmember Thomas presented the proclamation to Shelly 
Meeks of the Tri Cities Animal Shelter.  Ms. Meeks expressed the Shelter’s appreciation for the 
overwhelming support received from the tri-cities. 
 
Item No. R-2B Proclamation in recognition of Municipal Court Week, November 7-11, 2016.  
Mayor Green read the item into record.  Mayor Pro Tem Rutherford presented the proclamation to several 
members of the Municipal Court staff and Finance Director Summerlin noted his pride in the Municipal 
Court staff followed by introductions of each. 
  
Item No. R-2C Proclamation designating November 4, 2016 as “Arbor Day” in Duncanville. 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  Councilmember Schwartz presented the proclamation to Parks 
Superintendent Hamilton and Bobby Cutler Hill of the Keep Duncanville Beautiful Board.   
 

CITIZENS INPUT 
 
At this time, two-minute comments will be taken from the audience on any topic.  To address the 
Council, please submit a fully completed request card to the City Secretary prior to the beginning of the 
Citizens’ Input portion of the Council meeting.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the 
City Council cannot discuss issues raised or make any decision at this time.  Issues may be referred to 
City Staff for research and possible future action. 
 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  The following spoke during the Citizens Input Period: 
 
Dorothy Burton, 1723 Beaver Creek Drive – Ms. Burton thanked the City Council for their support of the 
Christians in Public Service event held on September 6th honoring Dr. Ron Anderson, and gave each 
Councilmember a tribute video, and invited them to a Youth Conference on October 19, 2017. 
 
Sharon Toups, 1219 Ridge Rock Lane – Spoke regarding the proposed TIF and upcoming rail discussions 
and concerns that more citizen input is needed before moving forward. 
 
Brad Toups, 1219 Ridge Rock Lane – Spoke regarding the proposed TIF and encouraged the City 
Council not to extend north of I-20 at this time; support of Camp Wisdom redevelopment but not beyond. 
 
Patricia Ebert, 115 S. Greenstone – Spoke regarding improvement to the town, and the Tax Code Chapter 
311.005 referring to clean up of slums when discussing TIFs which wasn’t mentioned in the proposed TIF 
presentation. 
 
Nancy Bell, 938 Nature Drive – Spoke against the proposed TIF specifically her concerns regarding the 
rush, and belief the City’s not being forthcoming, and the rail. 
  
Wesley Jameson, 1214 Lady Lane – Spoke against the proposed TIF specifically citizens’ concerns 
expressed at the Town Hall meeting, and not to extend north of I-20. 
 
Monte Anderson, 100 S. Main – Spoke regarding the positive improvement of adding bike racks, Main 
Street development has stopped, Economic Development’s lack of support for small businesses and spoke 
in favor of entrepreneurs. 
 



3 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Mayor Green requested that City Secretary Jones read the Consent Agenda Items. 
 
Item No. 4A Consider the Minutes for the October 18, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting. 
 
Item No. 4B Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
approving the terms and conditions of an Interlocal Agreement between the National Joint Powers 
Alliance “NJPA”, providing for a Cooperative Purchasing Program for goods and services; 
designating the City Manager as official representative of the City of Duncanville relating to the 
program; authorizing the City Manager to execute the necessary documents; and providing an 
effective date. 
 
Item No. 4C Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
authorizing the procurement of time and attendance software from Tyler Technologies through the 
National Joint Powers Alliance "NJPA" cooperative purchasing program, for the amount of fifty two 
thousand four hundred and seventy five dollars ($52,475); authorizing the City Manager to execute the 
necessary documents; and, providing for an effective date.  
 
Item No. 4D Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
authorizing the procurement of light-emitting diode (LED) illuminated street name signs from 
Consolidated Traffic Controls, Inc. through a Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement in the expenditure amount of ninety three thousand seven hundred seventy 
seven dollars and thirty six cents ($93,777.36); authorizing the City Manager to execute the necessary 
documents; and, providing an effective date. 
 
Item No. 4E Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
authorizing the procurement of traffic signal cameras from Paradigm Traffic Systems, Inc. through 
the TASB BuyBoard Cooperative Purchasing Program, for the amount of one hundred thirteen 
thousand seven hundred sixty dollars ($113,760.00), as set forth in the attached quote sheet, in Exhibit 
A; authorizing the City Manager to execute the appropriate purchase orders and other necessary 
documents; and, providing for an effective date.  
 
Item No. 4F Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
authorizing the procurement of non-visual accessible pedestrian pushbuttons from Consolidated 
Traffic Controls, Inc. through a Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement in the expenditure amount of ($74,889.44), as set forth in the attached quote sheet, Exhibit 
“A”; authorizing the City Manager to execute the appropriate purchase orders and other necessary 
documents; and, providing an effective date. 
 
Item No. 4G Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
approving the terms and conditions of a professional engineering services agreement for the 2017 
Partial Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey–Basin EA with Burgess & Niple, Inc., in the amount not to 
exceed sixty thousand and thirty two dollars ($60,032.00); authorizing the City Manager to execute 
such agreement which is attached as Exhibit “A”; and, providing an effective date. 
 
Item No. 4H Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
approving the terms and conditions of an agreement with Network Cabling Services, which is attached 
as Exhibit “A”, for installation of cabling, IP cameras, and all necessary equipment at the Fieldhouse 
and in Armstrong Park in the amount of one hundred forty four thousand nine hundred sixty two 
dollars and ninety seven cents ($144,962.97); authorizing the City Manager to execute such 
agreement; and, providing for an effective date. 
 
Item No. 4I Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
awarding the Keep Duncanville Beautiful November 2016 Business Beautification Award to the 
Duncanville Chamber of Commerce located at 300 E Wheatland Road; and, providing an effective 
date. 
 
Item No. 4J Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
awarding bid number IFB 16-20 and execute contract with A&M Construction and Utilities, Inc., 
attached as Exhibit “A”, for the Summit Ground Storage Tank Protective Coating Rehabilitation, in 
the amount of nine hundred and forty nine thousand nine hundred dollars ($949,900); authorizing the 
City Manager to execute such agreement; and, providing an effective date. 
  
City Secretary Jones read the consent items into record.  Councilmember Schwartz made a motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda Items as read.  Councilmember Dotson seconded the motion.  The vote was 
cast 7 for, 0 against. 



4 
 

INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 
Item No. 5A Hold a Public Hearing and Consider an Ordinance of the City of Duncanville, 
Texas, amending the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map, as heretofore amended, by repealing 
Ordinance No. 888, which established a planned development district, and development regulations in 
its entirety for the subject property only, and Ordinance No. 2195, which established a planned 
development district, and development regulations in its entirety; and, replace with a new planned 
development district and development regulations, site plan, landscape plan and elevations attached 
hereto as Exhibits “A” through “C”, on Lots 1R, 2R and 3, Block A, Oak Leaf Medical Offices Replat, 
more commonly known as 407, 411 and 415 West Danieldale Road, respectively, in the City of 
Duncanville, Dallas County, Texas; providing a repealing clause; providing a savings clause; 
providing a  severability  clause;  providing  a penalty of a fine not to exceed the sum of two thousand 
dollars  ($2,000.00) for  each offense; and, providing an effective date. 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  City Planner Allen presented the item including the background 
i.e. enlarging the building requiring smaller set back, the site map, site plan, floor plan for the medical and 
professional offices, and the recommended approval by Planning and Zoning Commission.  Mayor Green 
opened the public hearing.  No one spoke for or against the item.  Councilmember Schwartz made a 
motion to close the public hearing.  Councilmember Harvey seconded the motion.  The vote was cast 7 
for, 0 against.  Councilmember Thomas made a motion to approve the Ordinance.  Councilmember 
Schwartz seconded the motion.  Confirmation was made that no responses against the change were 
received by staff.  The vote was cast 7 for, 0 against. 
 
Item No. 5B Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
authorizing further development of a proposal to create a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 
Reinvestment Zone on Camp Wisdom Road between Cockrell Hill Road and Duncanville Road, and on 
Duncanville Road between Camp Wisdom and Red Bird Lane, and on Main Street between Camp 
Wisdom and Red Bird Lane. 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  Economic Development Director James presented the item 
including the history of discussions regarding the proposed TIF beginning in November 2015 with an 
economic impact analysis of I-20, recommended improvements, walkability and connectivity with safety 
improvements, redevelopment and branding benefits, and the original proposed area presented to City 
Council in June 2016.  She presented three options as alternatives to the original proposed area including 
the estimated revenues and expenses for each over the 20-year life of the TIF, recommended the City 
participate at 100%, the assumption that County would participate at 35%, the proposed TIF projects, 
reduction in crime, and next steps.   
 
Discussion included clarification that the City would be using the “pay as you go” method as the safest 
financially for the City, the TIF would not take away from addressing issues in the rest of the community, 
and importance of adopting before the new year in order to set the tax base at a lower amount in order to 
take advantage of the increases expected in the new year.  In response to a request by Councilmember 
Thomas, Mary Maza noted she has power of attorney for the vacant and 84 Lumber properties located on 
Duncanville Road and she is not in favor of the TIF.   Further discussion included the total acreage of 335 
acres vs the 80 acres for potential development after right-of-ways are subtracted.  Concerns discussed 
included increased traffic, whether it will work in a small city, unknowns and assumptions, rushing the 
process, need for more citizen input, and development possible without government intervention i.e. 
WinCo.  Additional positive impact discussed included ability to walk to work, businesses and 
homeowners along Camp Wisdom in favor of the TIF, deterrence to homeless and drug problems, and 
taking advantage of I-20 as a major thoroughfare to bring in tax dollars, and keeping the tax dollars in the 
area.  
 
Further discussion included the importance of the best use of the City’s 11.2 sq. miles and the importance 
of redevelopment and need for infrastructure improvement, and the TIF as a means to provide the funding 
necessary; previous development as a result of government intervention that has benefited the City i.e. 
Pappadeaux, HGI, Costco etc.; no increase in taxes necessary; benefits to be seen in the improvement to 
the area; and the overflow of redevelopment to Main Street which is another priority for redevelopment.     
 
Following discussion, Councilmember Schwartz made a motion to approve the Resolution as presented 
with Option 2 reduced area and at 100% participation.  Councilmember Harvey seconded the motion.  
The vote was cast 6 for, 1 against (Councilmember Jameson).   
 
Item No. 5C Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
approving a twelve month agreement between the City of Duncanville and the Duncanville Chamber of 
Commerce awarding a hotel occupancy tax grant to the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce located at 
300 E. Wheatland Road in the amount of $14,400 for FY 16 -17, to serve as the Official Duncanville 
Visitor Center; authorizing the City Manager to execute said agreement; and, providing an effective 
date. 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  Economic Development Director James presented the item 
including administrative fees to perform as the City’s Visitor Center i.e. 24 hour visitor center, increasing 



5 
 

visitor overnight stay in Duncanville, providing welcome bags to out of town visitors, coordinating 
activities for out of town groups; funding details; reporting requirements; and staff’s recommendation for 
approval.  Councilmember Harvey made a motion to approve the item.  Councilmember Dotson seconded 
the motion.  The vote was cast 7 for, 0 against. 
 
Item No. 5D Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
adopting the revised Capstones for the organization and the community, while discontinuing the “Five 
Bold Steps”; and, providing an effective date. 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  Assistant City Manager Smith presented the item including the 
history of the creation of the Capstones, which serve as the strategic policy goals and objectives for the 
City Council, and the Five Bold Steps in 2014 by City Council, and presented the following revised 
Capstones: 

1. Most engaged citizens in America 
2. Create high quality neighborhoods and parks 
3. Be a youth sports tourism destination 
4. Build a “tech forward” community 
5. Create multi-modal transportation alternatives 
6. Preserve the historic Main Street and City Center area 

He added that additional discussions held during the City Council retreat revealed the “Five Bold Steps” 
were no longer a necessary component of the Work Plan, and were therefore discarded for future planning 
use.  

Councilmember Harvey made a motion to approve the Resolution.  Councilmember Dotson seconded the 
motion.  The vote was cast 7 for, 0 against. 

Item No. 5E Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
adopting the City of Duncanville City Council Travel Policy, defining necessary expenses for spouses 
of City Council members, defining a local event, defining a spouse, and providing an effective date.  
Mayor Green announced that the Councilmembers had requested the item be postponed until the next 
regular meeting on November 15, 2016.  
 

STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS 
 
Item No. 6A Receive the Fire Department Quarterly Report and Workplan Update. 
Mayor Green read the item into record.  Fire Chief Sam Rohde presented the Fire Department Quarterly 
Report and Workplan Update for the last two quarters.  Items discussed included Staffing, Lifetime Silver 
EMS recognition, 4th of July Parade and Fireworks, recognition as “Storm Ready City”, Assistance to 
Firefighter Grant received for wellness and fitness training, smoke detector installation in Duncanville 
homes with the assistance of Home Depot and the Red Cross, the new Quint has been ordered, an off-duty 
Firefighter saved the life of a Duncanville resident, and presented the performance indicators for quarter 3 
and Quarter 4.  There were not questions. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 9:32 p.m. 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
     MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 



 
 
MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016                            AGENDA ITEM:  R-4B 
 
TITLE: 
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, authorizing the annual procurement of 
merchant card services with Chase Paymentech Solutions, L.L.C., in the unit amount proposed through a joint proposal 
through a Town of Flower Mound Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with an estimated annual expenditure amount of 
one hundred one thousand two hundred dollars ($101,200); authorizing the City Manager to execute the necessary 
documents; and, providing an effective date. 
 
FY2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 
N/A  
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Richard Summerlin, C.P.A., C.G.F.O., Finance Director  
Charlie Oberrender, CPPB, Purchasing Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Contract File # 12-29 
 
The proposed item is for authorization of the annual purchase of merchant card services through RFP #20-12 issued by the 
Town of Flower Mound and available to the City of Duncanville through its Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with the 
Town of Flower Mound.  The original agreement approved by the Town of Flower Mound and the City of Duncanville is 
a continuous term agreement and remains in effect until terminated by either party (non-fixed term agreement which 
includes a 30-day termination notice without cause clause).   The Duncanville City Council originally authorized the 
annual purchase of merchant card services with Chase Paymentech Solutions, L.L.C., through the Town of Flower Mound 
Cooperative contract, at its regular July 17, 2012 meeting.  The official full and complete roll-out, usage and expenses of 
this agreement began in December of 2012.  The Duncanville City Council authorized the annual purchase of merchant 
card services with Chase Paymentech Solutions, L.L.C. through this same cooperative agreement at its December 3, 2013, 
November 18, 2014, and November 17, 2015 regular meetings.  These merchant card services include the electronic 
processing of credit card payments made by City customers via their credit and debit cards. Examples of payments 
received are for court citations, alarm permits, water bills, red light enforcement citations, Fieldhouse registrations and 
concessions, recreation classes/reservations, and Building Inspection permits and fees.  The City accepts American 
Express®, Master Card®, and Visa® credit cards and bank issued debit cards that have credit card brands.     
 
The City of Duncanville originally began accepting credit cards in the late 1990’s. In fiscal year 2016, the City of 
Duncanville processed 77,926 credit card transactions, collecting a net total of $8,826,299 which included payments from 
the Internet, interactive voice response/telephone system (IVR), and walk-in payments for water bills, court citations, red 
light enforcement citations, Scofflaw payments, etc.  
 
  

 

STAFF REPORT 



The highlights of the Town of Flower Mound Cooperative term bid include: 
• Terms - Ongoing 
• Termination - without cause with thirty day prior notice 
• .03% - .04% processing fees plus $.04-$.09 cents per transaction 
• .05% - 1.80% interchange rate fees  

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The City of Duncanville provides a convenient customer service offering to its paying patrons by accepting payments 
from merchant cards (credit cards) and providing this service at no cost to its customers in most cases.  City of 
Duncanville customers, either over the Internet or by walk-in, are not assessed any convenience fees; however the 
exception are customers who call in to a City Utility Accounting Representative that can process the merchant card 
payments over the phone with an added convenience fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00) per transaction.  The City Council 
approved funding for a new Automated Interactive Voice Response (IVR) system in FY15 for Utility Accounting and 
Municipal Court to accept payments via this automated phone system which will allow staff to recommend the 
elimination of the convenience fee now in place.  The City’s average net credit card transaction for FY15 was $100.92 
with 56% of its transactions from the Visa® brand credit card. 

Under terms of the original agreement, the City pays processing fees ranging from .03%-.04% plus $.04-$.09 cents per 
transaction. The City pays an interchange rate to the credit card issuing firm, ranging between .05% and 1.80% of each 
transaction plus assessment fees.  Interchange rate fees are the processor’s cost for each settled transaction paid to the 
financial institution that issued the credit card.  Dues and assessments are fees paid to Visa® and MasterCard® based on 
volume of sales.  Fees are slightly higher than budgeted primarily due to higher than anticipated credit card transactions 
related to the increased summer camp and after school programs at the Duncanville Fieldhouse. 

The merchant card services are available from Chase Paymentech Solutions, L.L.C through a Town of Flower Mound 
Cooperative.  Local Government Code Section 271.102 provides for the voluntary participation in cooperative purchasing 
programs with another local government or a local cooperative and satisfies any state law requiring competitive bids.   
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
$102,600 is allocated in the FY 17 budget for this expenditure:  General Fund/Non-Departmental ($9,600), Utility 
Fund/Utility Accounting ($85,000) and Fieldhouse Fund/Administrative ($8,000).  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, authorizing the annual 
procurement of merchant card services with Chase Paymentech Solutions, L.L.C., in the unit amount proposed through a 
joint proposal through a Town of Flower Mound Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with an estimated annual 
expenditure amount of one hundred one thousand two hundred dollars ($101,200); authorizing the City Manager to 
execute the necessary documents; and, providing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Original Proposal Evaluation Tabulation Sheet 
Attachment 2 - Resolution 
 



RFP No. 20-12-A

EVALUATION MATRIX
POINTS WEIGHTED 

SCORE
POINTS WEIGHTED 

SCORE
POINTS WEIGHTED 

SCORE

Evaluation Criteria Weighting 
Financial Capability 20% 3.00 0.20 13 0.87 20.00 1.33

Technical Compliance 20% 7.00 0.47 15.00 1.00 19.00 1.27

Relevant Experience 20% 13.00 0.87 13.00 0.87 17.00 1.13
Additional Services 10% 8.00 0.27 7.00 0.23 6.00 0.20
Price 30% 7.32 2.20 8.67 2.60 10.00 3.00
TOTAL 100% 4.00 5.57 6.93

Merchant Card Services

Automated Merchant 
Systems, Inc.

Branch Banking and 
Trust (BB&T)

(Chase) Paymentech, 
LLC

ATTACHMENT 1



Merchant Application and Agreement 

If you make any corrections,  
you MUST initial each change. 

THIS SECTION IS FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012 

Application ID:        Sales Rep:        

Rep Fax:        Rep Phone:       
 

1. Merchant Business (Federal regulations require us to collect and retain information verifying a merchant’s identity.) 

 “Doing Business As” (DBA) Information 
Merchant DBA Name Date Business Started (MM/YYYY) 

               

DBA Street Address (No PO Box or Paid Mail Box) Telephone # 

            

City State Zip Code Fax # 

                     

Name of Primary Contact Merchant DBA Email Address

            

Legal Information (If you are an Individual/Sole Proprietor, fill in this section with your personal information) 
Merchant Legal Name State of Formation Federal Tax ID/EIN (sole prop use SSN)

                           

Complete this section if different from DBA Information.  

Legal Street Address Telephone # 

            

City State Zip Code Fax # 

                     

Legal Email Address 

      

Business and IRS Information (Please check the type of business and how it is taxed) 
 LLC taxed as  S Corporation    C Corporation    Partnership    Disregarded Entity1 

 Individual/Sole Proprietor 1 A Disregarded Entity is a business that is separate from its owner for legal purposes but the owner chooses 
to “disregard” that separation for federal income tax purposes. If an individual owns a Disregarded Entity, it is 
treated as a sole proprietor. If another legal entity owns it, it is treated as a branch or division of the owner.  Partnership 

 Private Corporation or  Public Corporation taxed as  S Corporation    C Corporation 
 Government Agency or  Non-Profit2 check if  Exempt from IRS backup withholding 

2 Non-profit companies need to submit form 501C and, if exempt from sales tax, should also submit their state tax exempt certificate. 
 

2. Merchant Profile 

Is your business home-based?    Yes    No  Has business ever been in bankruptcy?    Yes    No 

If “Yes” above, where is the inventory located? 
       

What is your type of business? 
 Retail  Restaurant  Lodging 
 Auto Rental  Cash Advance  Convenience Store/Gas 
 Other:       
 Internet (You are required to list all website addresses): 

 www.      

What merchandise do you sell or services do you provide? 
      

 

Is your business seasonal?   Yes   No  
 

3. Delivery of Statements, Chargeback Requests, and Retrieval Requests 
Statements  (Select one delivery method and one address only)  Chargeback and Retrieval Requests  (Select one address only) 

 Email statements to 
  Legal email address 
  DBA email address 

 Mail statements to (see pricing) 
  Legal address 
  DBA address 

 Mail requests to 
  Legal address 

DBA address

To have retrievals faxed instead of 
mailed, provide fax number below: 
      



 

If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012 Page 2 of 14 
 

4. Sales Information 

What is the estimated annual breakdown (in %) of your annual 
Payment Card Transactions?       Do you ever charge a Customer on a recurring basis?  Yes    No 

     % Via mail or phone order  If “Yes” above, how often will you charge? 
 30 Days  60 Days  90 Days  Annually 
 Other:       

     % Ecommerce – accepted on your website  

     % Card is swiped  

     % Card is present but keyed  If Customers are required to pay a deposit, what % of total sale?      % 

 100 % Total   
 

5. Ownership Information 
If one or more individuals own your business, 

Complete section A or A and B for one or two who  
have greatest % of ownership. 

If your business is a non-profit organization, publicly owned 
corporation, or governmental entity,  

Complete section C only. 

If a parent company owns your business, 
Enter the name of the legal entity(ies) in section A or A and B 
Provide name of Authorized Representative in Section C. 
Substitute the parent company Federal Tax ID into the SSN section. 

If Authorized Representative signing this Application is not an owner 
Complete section C only. 

A Name of Individual/Sole Proprietor or Parent Company Percentage  
of Ownership:     % 

Social Security # 

                        

Street Address (Individual/Sole Proprietor use home address) (No PO Box or paid mailbox) Date of Birth 

            

City State Zip Code Telephone # 

                     

B Name of Individual/Sole Proprietor or Parent Company Percentage  
of Ownership:     % 

Social Security #

                        

Street Address (Individual/Sole Proprietor use home address) (No PO Box or paid mailbox) Date of Birth 

            

City State Zip Code Telephone # 

                     

C Name of Authorized Representative Title

            

 

6. Funding and Account Information  
The Merchant must own the bank account you provide below. Chase Paymentech may: 

• deposit into this account amounts owed to Merchant by Chase Paymentech, such as proceeds from Merchant’s Payment Card Transactions 
• debit this account for amounts Merchant owes to Chase Paymentech associated with its Merchant account, such as fees for processing  

Merchant’s Payment Card Transactions 
• debit this account for any negative amounts presented, such as refunds, returns or Chargebacks 

Name of Bank Designating this bank account for the purposes outlined above must not  
violate any of Merchant’s organizational documents or any agreement to  
which the Merchant is a party.       

Routing Number (always consists of 9 digits) Account Number (number of digits will vary) 

                                                  

The image below shows where to find your Routing Number and Account Number. Do not use the internal routing number that begins with a 5. 

 



 
If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012 Page 3 of 14 
 

7. Payment and Processing Information 
If you have previously accepted payment cards, please include your three (3) most recent monthly processing statements. 

Please check all payment methods you wish to accept:  
 Visa  MasterCard  Discover/JCB  PIN Debit 
 Voyager  Wright Express  Gift Card 

 Estimated Total Annual Visa/MC/Discover Sales Volume $
Estimated Total Annual PIN Debit Sales Volume $
Estimated Average Ticket Amount $

Current Payment Processor Estimated Highest Transaction Amount $

      
Has Merchant ever had a breach involving lost card data or received a 
notification for any violation of the Payment Brand Rules?   Yes    No

 
8. American Express® 

A. American Express Service Establishment Number (SE#) 

If you have an American Express SE#, please provide it here:        

Only Complete Section B if you do not have an American Express SE# and would like Chase Paymentech to request one for you. 

B. Application for American Express Service Establishment Number (SE#)   

 Estimated Total Annual American Express Sales Volume $        Estimated Average American Express Transaction Amount $       

American Express Fees – Unless otherwise indicated in this 
Section 8B, Merchant shall be charged industry-specific American 
Express Discount Rate listed to the right. 
If Merchant operates within one of the following categories, or fails  
to activate their American Express account, Merchant will not be  
charged the American Express Discount Rate. Instead, Merchant  
will be charged a flat monthly fee of $7.95. 

• Internet / Physical Delivery Merchant 
• Mail Order / Telephone Order 
• Home-based Business 

If Merchant is charged a flat monthly fee of $7.95, that fee will  
continue until Merchant’s American Express volume exceeds  
$4,999 in a 12-month period. 

American Express Discount Rate      % 

At such time American Express will begin charging Merchant the  
applicable industry-specific  American Express Discount Rate. 
Also, based on Merchant’s MCC and American Express’s grouping of 
MCCs, the following additional fees will be applied to each American 
Express Transaction: 

• Business to Business MCCs: $0.15 
• Retail MCCs: $0.10 
• Services, Wholesale, All Other MCCs not otherwise categorized: $0.15 
• Restaurant: $0.05 (+ 0.30% for hand-keyed or card not present transactions) 

All American Express fees are subject to change by American Express. 

FOR PAYMENTECH TO REQUEST AN AMERICAN EXPRESS NUMBER ON BEHALF OF THE MERCHANT THROUGH THE AMEX ESA PROGRAM:
By signing below, I represent that I have read and am authorized to sign and submit this application for the above entity which agrees to be bound by the American 
Express® Card Acceptance Agreement (“Agreement”), and that all information provided herein is true, complete and accurate. I authorize Paymentech and American 
Express Travel Related Services Company, Inc. (“American Express”) and American Express’s agents and Affiliates to verify the information in this application and receive 
and exchange information about me personally, including by requesting reports from consumer reporting agencies, and disclose such information to their agents, 
subcontractors, Affiliates, and other parties for any purpose permitted by law. I authorize and direct Paymentech and American Express and American Express’s agents 
and Affiliates to inform me directly, or through the entity above, of reports about me that they have requested from consumer reporting agencies. Such information will 
include the name and address of the agency furnishing the report. I also authorize American Express to use the reports from consumer reporting agencies for marketing 
and administrative purposes. I understand that upon American Express’s approval of the application, the entity will be provided with the Agreement and materials 
welcoming it to American Express’s Card acceptance program. In addition, by signing this form, you authorize American Express and its agents and Affiliates to send you 
account information and exclusive offers and savings for your business via the information that you have provided, which includes your business email address. For 
information on how we use your information and protect your privacy, please visit us at www.americanexpress.com/privacy. 

X          
 Signature  Date  

 

9. Site Visit  10. IRS Certification 

If your business is selected for a site visit, Chase Paymentech, or a 
third party representing Chase Paymentech, will contact you at the 
number provided. You MUST assist with the site visit and Chase 
Paymentech MUST approve the results of the site visit. 
The site visit includes, but is not limited to,  

• an interview with you regarding the nature of your business, and  
• photographs of your business operation. 

If the site visit is not completed or the results of the site visit are not 
approved, Chase Paymentech may,  

• decline your application for a merchant account  
• withhold your funds, or 
• terminate your Agreement with Chase Paymentech and close  

your Merchant account. 
To help expedite the process, we require the following information: 

Under penalty of perjury, I certify that: 
1. The number shown on this form (Section 1) is my correct taxpayer 

identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), 
and  

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from 
backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a 
result of a failure to report all interest in dividends, or (c) the IRS has 
notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person. 

Certification Instructions 
You must cross out and initial #2 above if you have been notified by the 
IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding. 
IRS Form W-9 instructions available upon request. Best phone # to contact you: Preferred language: 

 English    Spanish 
 Other:       

      
Best time to reach you:       



 
If you make any corrections, you MUST initial each change. Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012 Page 4 of 14 
 

11. Authorized Representative(s) 

The first four pages of this document are the Merchant’s Application to 
establish a Merchant account with Paymentech, LLC (“Chase 
Paymentech”) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (“Member”). Once 
submitted, the Application belongs to Chase Paymentech and Member. 
Any set up fee paid by Merchant is non-refundable. The Application is 
subject to approval by Chase Paymentech and Member. If the Application 
is approved, Chase Paymentech will establish one or more Merchant 
account(s). All Merchant accounts will be governed by the entire 
Agreement, which includes: the Application, the Terms and Conditions, 
Schedule A (pricing), and any amendments, supplements or modifications 
provided to you. 

As a person who submits the Application on behalf of Merchant and who 
signs this document on behalf of Merchant, I, the undersigned, certify that 

• I am an owner, partner, officer or other authorized representative of 
the Merchant (“Authorized Representative”) 

• I have been duly authorized to  
  • submit the Application, and all information contained therein,  

  on behalf of the Merchant 
  • sign the Application and Agreement on behalf of Merchant 
  • legally bind the Merchant to the Agreement. 

 

Through its Authorized Representative(s), Merchant  
• represents and warrants that all information contained within the  

Application as well as any information submitted in conjunction  
with the Application is true, complete, and not misleading 

• represents and warrants that it owns the bank account provided in 
Section 6 

• represents and warrants that it has received a complete copy of the 
Agreement, including the Terms and Conditions for Merchant  
Agreement and Schedule A 

• agrees to be legally bound by the Agreement 
• understands that any unilateral changes to the pre-printed text of any 

part of the Agreement may result in Chase Paymentech declining 
Merchant’s Application or terminating the Agreement 

• agrees that Chase Paymentech, Member, or their designees, may  
  • investigate and verify the credit and financial information  

  of Merchant 
  • obtain consumer and commercial credit reports on Merchant and 

  its owner(s) from time to time 
  • use consumer and commercial credit reports on Merchant and its 

  owner(s) in connection with the establishment and maintenance  
  of Merchant’s account and Agreement 

• agrees that Member and Chase Paymentech may share credit, 
financial information about Merchant and Chase Paymentech. 

The Internal Revenue Service does not require your consent to any provision of this document other than the certification required to avoid backup 
withholding. (See Section 10 above). 

 Authorized Representative: Signer’s name must appear in Section 5A, 5B, or 5C

X                 
 Signature  Print Name  Date  

 Authorized Representative: Signer’s name must appear in Section 5A, 5B, or 5C

X                 
 Signature  Print Name  Date  

 

12. Individual Guarantor(s) 

The person(s) acting as individual guarantor(s) must have an ownership interest in Merchant and must be listed in Section 5 of this Application. 
As an individual(s) who agrees to be personally responsible for Merchant’s account with Chase Paymentech (a “Guarantor”), I 
• certify I have received and reviewed a complete copy of the Agreement, 

including the Application, Terms and Conditions, and Schedule A 
• certify I have read the Agreement, including, without limitation, the 

“Personal Guaranty” section at the end of the Terms and Conditions 
• agree to be bound as a Guarantor of the Merchant’s obligations under 

the Agreement in accordance with the “Personal Guaranty” section of 
the Terms and Conditions 

• certify that I have an ownership interest in Merchant 

• agree that Chase Paymentech, Member, or their designees, may 
investigate and verify the credit and financial information about me and 
may obtain consumer credit reports on me from time to time 

• agree that Chase Paymentech, Member, or their designees, may use 
such consumer credit reports in connection with establishing and 
maintaining the Merchant’s account and Agreement 

• agree that all business references, including financial institutions, may 
share my credit and financial information with Chase Paymentech 

 Guarantor:   

X                 
 Signature  Print Name  Date  

 Guarantor:   

X                 
 Signature  Print Name  Date  

If any of the information provided in this Merchant Application and Agreement changes,  
you must notify Chase Paymentech of such change(s) as soon as possible. 

 
 Internal Use Only:  Approved by Paymentech, LLC for itself and on behalf of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.    

                 
 Signature  Title  Date  



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 5 of 14 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS           

 
1. MERCHANT’S ACCEPTANCE OF PAYMENT INSTRUMENTS.   
1.1 Exclusivity.  During the term of this Agreement, Chase Paymentech shall be Merchant’s exclusive provider of all Transaction processing services 
(including, without limitation, the authorization, conveyance and settlement of Transactions), and Merchant shall not use the services of any bank, 
corporation, entity or person other than Paymentech for such services. Merchant shall submit to Chase Paymentech Transaction Data generated from all 
of its Transactions via electronic data transmission according to Chase Paymentech’s formats and procedures throughout the term of this Agreement.   
 
1.2 Certain Payment Acceptance Policies and Prohibitions.  
 (a)  Each Transaction must be evidenced by its own Transaction Receipt completed in accordance with Payment Brand Rules. 
 (b) Merchant shall not require the Customer to pay the fees payable by Merchant under this Agreement.   
 (c) Merchant shall never issue Refunds for Transactions by cash or a cash equivalent (e.g., check) unless required by law or permitted by the Payment 
Brand Rules. 
 (d) Unless permitted by the Payment Brand Rules, Merchant shall not engage in any practice that unfavorably discriminates against or provides 
unequal treatment of any Payment Brand relative to any other Payment Brand.   
 (e) Except where expressly permitted by law or the Payment Brand Rules, Merchant shall not set a dollar amount above or below which Merchant 
refuses to honor otherwise valid Payment Instruments.   
 (f) Merchant shall examine each Payment Instrument physically presented at the point of sale to determine that the Payment Instrument presented is 
valid and has not expired.  Merchant shall exercise reasonable diligence to determine that the authorized signature on any Payment Instrument physically 
presented at the point of sale corresponds to the Customer’s signature on the Transaction Receipt. 
 (g) With respect to any Transaction for which a Customer is not physically present at the point of sale, such as in any on-line, mail, telephone, pre-
authorized or recurring Transaction, Merchant must (i) have notified Chase Paymentech on its Application, or otherwise obtained Chase Paymentech’s 
prior written approval, of Merchant’s intention to conduct such Transactions; and (ii) have appropriate procedures in place to ensure that each Transaction 
is made to a purchaser who actually is the Customer.  Merchant acknowledges that under certain Payment Brand Rules, Merchant cannot rebut a 
Chargeback where the Customer disputes making the purchase and Merchant does not have an electronic record (e.g., “swiping” or “tapping” a Payment 
Instrument) or physical imprint of the Payment Instrument. 
 (h) Merchant agrees to accept all categories of Visa and MasterCard Payment Instruments (i.e., debit and credit cards), unless Merchant has notified 
Chase Paymentech on its Application or otherwise in writing of its election to accept one of the following “limited acceptance” options: (i) all Visa and 
MasterCard consumer credit cards and Visa and MasterCard commercial credit and debit cards; or (ii) Visa and MasterCard debit cards only (but no credit 
cards).  Notwithstanding the election of one of the foregoing limited acceptance options, Merchant must honor all foreign bank-issued Visa or MasterCard 
Payment Instruments.  If Merchant elects one of the limited acceptance categories: (Y) Merchant must display appropriate signage to indicate the limited 
acceptance category; and (Z) Chase Paymentech, at its option, may process any Transactions submitted to Chase Paymentech outside of the limited 
acceptance category, in which case such Transactions will be assessed the applicable interchange fees plus any additional fees/surcharges assessed by 
Chase Paymentech or the Payment Brands.  
 (i) Merchant shall not split a single Transaction into two or more Transactions to avoid or circumvent authorization limits or monitoring programs. 
 (j) Merchant shall not accept Payment Instruments for the purchase of scrip. 
 (k) Merchant shall not require a Customer to complete a postcard or similar device that includes the Customer’s Payment Instrument account number, 
expiration date, or any other account data in plain view when mailed. 
 (l) Merchant shall not add any tax or surcharge to Transactions, unless applicable law expressly requires a Merchant be permitted to impose the tax or 
surcharge.  If any tax or surcharge amount is allowed, such amount shall be included in the Transaction amount and shall not be collected separately. 
 (m) Merchant shall not request or use a Payment Instrument account number for any purpose except as payment for its goods or services, unless 
required by the Payment Brand Rules in order to support specific services offered by the Payment Brands. 
 
1.3  Payment Brand Rules. Merchant agrees to comply with (a) all Payment Brand Rules as may be applicable to Merchant and in effect from time to 
time; and (b) such other procedures as Chase Paymentech may from time to time prescribe for the creation or transmission of Transaction Data.   
 
1.4 Requirements for Certain Transactions.  As to all Transactions, Merchant represents and warrants that, to the best of its knowledge:  
 (a) The Transaction Data (i) represents a payment for or Refund of a bona fide sale or lease of the goods, services, or both, which Merchant has 
provided in the ordinary course of its business, as represented in its Application; and (ii) is not submitted on behalf of a third party. 
  (b) The Transaction Data represents an obligation of the Customer for the amount of the Transaction. 
 (c) The Transaction is not for any purpose other than payment for the current Transaction.  The Transaction does not represent the collection of a 
dishonored check or the collection or refinancing of an existing debt.  The Transaction does not represent payment for a previous Transaction or charge 
incurred at the Merchant or a Transaction that was previously charged back by the Customer, irrespective of Customer consent or approval. 
 (d)  Except as specifically stated in Merchant’s Application or otherwise approved in writing by Chase Paymentech in advance, with respect to any 
prepayment for services or full prepayment for custom-ordered merchandise manufactured to the Customer’s specifications, at the time Merchant accepts 
a Payment Instrument for any goods or services, the goods have been provided or shipped or the services actually rendered to the Customer.  For 
approved prepayments, Merchant must advise the Customer (i) that payment is being made in advance of the shipment or provision of goods or services; 
and (ii) the time when shipment or provision of the goods or services is expected. 
 (e) The Transaction Data is free from any material alteration not authorized by the Customer. 
 (f) The amount charged for the Transaction is not subject to any dispute, setoff, or counterclaim. 
 (g) Merchant has not disbursed or advanced any cash to the Customer (except as authorized by the Payment Brand Rules) or itself or to any of its 
representatives, agents, or employees in connection with the Transaction, nor has Merchant accepted payment for effecting credits to a Customer. 
 (h) The goods or services related to each Transaction are Merchant’s property or Merchant has the legal right to sell them. 
 (i) Merchant has made no representation or agreement for the issuance of Refunds except as stated in Merchant’s Refund Policy, which has been 
previously submitted to Chase Paymentech in writing as provided in Section 3, and which is available to the Customer. 
 (j) Any Transaction submitted to Chase Paymentech to credit a Customer’s account represents a Refund for a Transaction previously submitted to 



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 6 of 14 
 
Chase Paymentech. 
 (k) Merchant has no knowledge or notice of information that would lead Merchant to believe that the enforceability or collectibility of the Transaction is in 
any manner impaired.  Merchant has originated the Transaction and Transaction Data in compliance with this Agreement, applicable laws and all 
applicable Payment Brand Rules. 
 (l) Unless specifically stated in its Application or otherwise approved in writing by Chase Paymentech in advance, Merchant shall not accept Payment 
Instruments in connection with installment plans.  If the Customer pays in installments or on a deferred payment plan, as previously approved by Chase 
Paymentech, a Transaction Data record has been prepared separately for each installment transaction or deferred payment on the dates the Customer 
agreed to be charged.  All installments and deferred payments, whether or not they have been submitted to Chase Paymentech for processing, shall be 
deemed to be a part of the original Transaction. 
   (m)  Merchant has not submitted any Transaction that Merchant knows or should have known to be either fraudulent, illegal, damaging to the Payment 
Brand(s), not authorized by the Customer or otherwise in violation of any provision of this Agreement, applicable law, or Payment Brand Rules. 
 (n) For recurring Transactions, Merchant must (i) obtain the Customer’s consent to periodically charge the Customer on a recurring basis for the goods 
or services purchased; (ii) retain this permission for the duration of the recurring services and provide it upon request to Chase Paymentech or the issuing 
bank of the Customer’s Payment Instrument; and (iii) retain written documentation specifying the frequency of the recurring charge and the duration of 
time during which such charges may be made.  Merchant shall not submit any recurring transaction after receiving:  (i) a cancellation notice from the 
Customer; or (ii) notice from Chase Paymentech or any Payment Brand (via authorization code or otherwise) that the Payment Instrument is not to be 
honored. Merchant shall include in its Transaction Data the electronic indicator that the Transaction is a recurring Transaction. 
 
1.5  Stored Value Card Transactions.  As to all Stored Value Card Transactions, if any, in addition to any representations and warranties previously 
made, Merchant agrees to: 
 (a) comply with all applicable laws relating to Stored Value Card Transactions, and indemnify and hold Chase Paymentech harmless from any loss, 
damage, or claim relating to or arising out of any failure to comply with applicable laws in connection therewith;   
 (b) be responsible for ensuring that all Stored Value Cards require activation at the point of sale;  
 (c) provide immediate written notification to Chase Paymentech of any Stored Value Card fraud losses immediately;  
    (d) be solely responsible for any and all value adding and fraud losses and expenses relating to or arising from Merchant’s Stored Value Card 
Transactions; 
 (e) discourage transportation of groups of sequentially numbered gift cards;  
    (f) deactivate or otherwise remove all value from Stored Value Cards that have been compromised; and  
    (g) be responsible for any fraudulent transactions involving Merchant’s Stored Value Cards, including, without limitation, the unauthorized activation of 
Stored Value Cards, reloading of existing Stored Value Cards (whether pursuant to a manual telephone order or otherwise) with additional value, or the 
unauthorized replication of Stored Value Cards or Stored Value Card data for fraudulent Transactions.   
 
2. AUTHORIZATIONS.  Merchant is required to obtain an authorization code through Chase Paymentech, in accordance with this Agreement, for each 
Transaction.  Merchant acknowledges that authorization of a Transaction indicates that the Payment Instrument (a) contains a valid account number; and 
(b) has an available credit balance sufficient for the amount of the Transaction; but, it does not constitute a representation from Chase Paymentech, a 
Payment Brand, or a card issuing bank that a particular Transaction is in fact a valid or undisputed Transaction entered into by the actual Customer.  
Chase Paymentech reserves the right to refuse to process any Transaction Data presented by Merchant unless it includes a proper authorization. 
 
3. REFUND AND ADJUSTMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES; PRIVACY POLICIES. 
3.1 Refund Policy.  Merchant is required to maintain a Refund Policy and to disclose such Refund Policy to Chase Paymentech and Customers.  Any 
material change in Merchant’s Refund Policy must be submitted to Chase Paymentech, in writing, not less than 14 days prior to the effective date of such 
change.  Chase Paymentech reserves the right to refuse to process any Transactions made subject to a revised Refund Policy of which Chase 
Paymentech has not been notified in advance.  To the extent that Merchant operates an electronic commerce website through which Transaction Data is 
generated, Merchant must include its Refund Policy on the website in accordance with Payment Brand Rules. 
 
3.2 Procedure for Refund Transactions.  If, under Merchant’s Refund Policy, Merchant allows a Refund, Merchant shall prepare and deliver to Chase 
Paymentech Transaction Data reflecting any such Refund within three (3) days of approving the Customer’s request for such Refund.  The amount of a 
Refund cannot exceed the amount shown as the total on the original Transaction Data except by the exact amount required to reimburse the Customer for 
shipping charges that the Customer paid to return merchandise.  Merchant shall not accept any payment from a Customer as consideration for issuing a 
Refund.  Merchant shall not give cash (or cash equivalent) refunds to a Customer in connection with a Transaction, unless required by law or permitted by 
the Payment Brand Rules.  
 
3.3 Customer Data Protection Policies.  To the extent that Merchant operates an electronic commerce website through which Transaction Data is 
generated, in addition to any requirements otherwise set forth in this Agreement, Merchant shall display the following on its website: (a) its Customer data 
privacy policy; (b) a description of its security capabilities and policy for transmission of Payment Instrument Information; and (c) the address of Merchant’s 
fixed place of business (regardless of website or server locations).  Furthermore, Merchant must offer its Customers a data protection method such as 3-D 
Secure or Secure Sockets Layer (SSL). 
 
4. SETTLEMENT. 
4.1 Submission of Transaction Data.  Failure to transmit Transaction Data to Chase Paymentech within one (1) business day following the day that such 
Transaction originated could result in higher interchange fees and other costs, as well as increased Chargebacks.  Unless Merchant has notified Chase 
Paymentech on its Application or Chase Paymentech has otherwise agreed in writing in advance, Merchant shall not submit Transactions for processing 
until (a) the Transaction is completed; (b) the goods are delivered or shipped; (c) the services are performed; or (d) Merchant has obtained the Customer’s 
consent for a recurring Transaction.  Chase Paymentech may from time to time contact Customers to verify that they have received goods or services for 
which Transactions have been submitted. Chase Paymentech reserves the right to refuse to process any Transaction Data presented by Merchant if 
Chase Paymentech reasonably believes that the Transaction may be uncollectible from the Customer or was prepared in violation of any provision of this 
Agreement, applicable law, or the Payment Brand Rules. For all Transactions, Chase Paymentech will submit Merchant’s Transaction Data to the 
applicable Payment Brands. 



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 7 of 14 
 
 
4.2 Merchant’s Settlement Account.  In order to receive funds from Chase Paymentech, and to the extent not already designated within the Application, 
Merchant must designate and maintain one or more accounts used primarily for business purposes at a bank that is a member of the Automated Clearing 
House system or the Federal Reserve wire system (collectively referred to as “Settlement Account”).   During the term of this Agreement, and thereafter 
until Chase Paymentech notifies Merchant that all amounts due from Merchant under this Agreement have been paid in full, Merchant shall not close its 
Settlement Account without giving Chase Paymentech at least five (5) days’ prior written notice and substituting another Settlement Account.  Merchant is 
solely liable for all fees, costs, and overdrafts associated with the Settlement Account.  Merchant authorizes Chase Paymentech to initiate electronic credit 
and debit entries and adjustments to the Settlement Account at any time without regard to the source of any monies in the Settlement Account, and this 
authority will remain in full force and effect until Chase Paymentech notifies Merchant that all amounts due from Merchant under this Agreement have 
been paid in full.  Chase Paymentech will not be liable for any delays in receipt of funds or errors in Settlement Account entries caused by third parties, 
including, without limitation, delays or errors by the Payment Brands or Merchant’s bank. 
 
4.3 Conveyed Transactions.  For Conveyed Transactions Merchant shall have a valid agreement in effect with the applicable Payment Brand.  If 
Merchant submits Conveyed Transactions to Chase Paymentech and Merchant does not have a valid agreement with the applicable Payment Brand, 
Chase Paymentech may, but shall not be obligated to, submit such Transaction Data to the applicable Payment Brand and to share with them information 
about Merchant (from the Application or otherwise) as may be required to approve Merchant’s acceptance of the Payment Brand’s Payment Instrument.  
Payment of proceeds due Merchant for Conveyed Transactions shall be governed by the agreement Merchant has with the applicable Payment Brand, 
and Chase Paymentech does not bear any responsibility for their performance thereunder, including, without limitation, the funding and settlement of 
Merchant’s Conveyed Transactions.   
 
4.4 Transfer of Transaction Settlement Funds. Subject to Section 4.3, for all Transactions, Chase Paymentech will submit Merchant’s Transaction Data 
to the applicable Payment Brand. Promptly after Chase Paymentech receives funds for Settled Transactions from the Payment Brands, Chase 
Paymentech will provisionally fund the Settlement Account.  The proceeds payable to Merchant shall be equal to the amounts submitted by Merchant in 
connection with its Transaction Data minus the sum of the following:  (a) all fees, charges, and other amounts described on Schedule A or that Merchant 
has otherwise agreed to pay; (b) all Refunds and Chargebacks; (c) all Reserve Account (as defined in Section 4.6) amounts; (d) all fees, charges, fines, 
assessments, penalties, or other liabilities that may be imposed on Chase Paymentech or Member from time to time by the Payment Brands and all 
related costs and expenses incurred by Chase Paymentech.  Merchant agrees that all amounts are due and payable as provided in this Agreement.  In 
the event Chase Paymentech does not deduct such amounts from Merchant’s proceeds when such amounts are due and payable, Merchant agrees to 
pay all such amounts to Chase Paymentech immediately without any deduction or offset.  Additionally, Chase Paymentech may debit the Settlement 
Account or Merchant’s Reserve Account for such amounts at any time.  
 
4.5 Negative Amounts. Merchant shall maintain sufficient funds in the Settlement Account to prevent the occurrence of a negative balance.  In the event 
that the proceeds from Merchant’s Settled Transactions or the balance of Merchant’s Settlement Account are not sufficient to pay amounts due under this 
Agreement, in addition to any other rights and remedies Chase Paymentech may have under this Agreement, Chase Paymentech may pursue one or 
more of the following options:   
 
 (a) demand and receive immediate payment for such amounts;  
 (b) debit the Settlement Account for the amount of the negative balance; 
 (c) apply funds held in the Reserve Account against the negative amount; and 
 (d) withhold all or some of Merchant’s Settlement funds and apply them against the negative amount.  
 
Furthermore, if the amount represented by Merchant’s Transaction Data in any day is negative due to Refunds or credits being submitted by Merchant in 
excess of its proceeds from Transactions, Merchant shall immediately provide Chase Paymentech with sufficient funds to prevent the occurrence of a 
negative balance. 
 
4.6 Reserve Account.  At any time and from time to time Chase Paymentech may temporarily suspend or delay payments to Merchant and/or designate 
an amount of funds that Chase Paymentech must maintain in order to protect itself against anticipated risks, including, without limitation, risks associated 
with Chargebacks, fines, fees or penalties assessed against Chase Paymentech or Member by any of the Payment Brands arising out of or relating to 
Merchant’s Transactions, Chargebacks or failure to comply with the Payment Brand Rules or the Security Standards (all such risks herein referred to as 
“Anticipated Risks” and such funds being hereinafter referred to as the “Reserve Account”), which may be funded in the same manner as provided for 
negative balances in Section 4.5The Reserve Account will contain sufficient funds to cover any unbilled processing costs plus Chase Paymentech’s 
estimated exposure based on reasonable criteria for Chargebacks, Refunds, unshipped goods and/or unfulfilled services, and all additional Anticipated 
Risks.  Chase Paymentech may (but is not required to) apply funds in the Reserve Account toward, and set off any funds that would otherwise be payable 
to Merchant against, the satisfaction of any amounts which are or may become due from Merchant pursuant to this Agreement. Funds in the Reserve 
Account will be held and controlled by Chase Paymentech, will not bear interest, and may be commingled with other funds. Effective upon Chase 
Paymentech’s establishment of a Reserve Account, Merchant irrevocably grants to Chase Paymentech a security interest in any interest Merchant may 
now have or later acquire in any and all funds, together with the proceeds thereof, that may at any time be in the Reserve Account and that would 
otherwise be payable to Merchant pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Merchant agrees to execute and deliver to Chase Paymentech such 
instruments and documents that Chase Paymentech may reasonably request to perfect and confirm the security interest in the Reserve Account funds.  
Upon (i) satisfaction of all of Merchant’s obligations under this Agreement; and (ii) Merchant’s execution of documents reasonably requested by Chase 
Paymentech in connection with the return of any Reserve Account funds, Chase Paymentech will pay to Merchant any funds then remaining in the 
Reserve Account. 
 
5. ACCOUNTING. Chase Paymentech will supply a detailed statement reflecting the activity of Merchant’s account(s) by online access (or otherwise if 
agreed to by both parties) and Merchant shall ensure that any online access to such statements is secure.  If Merchant believes any adjustments should 
be made with respect to Merchant’s Settlement Account, Merchant must notify Chase Paymentech in writing within 90 days after any such adjustment is 
or should have been effected.   
 



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 8 of 14 
 
6. RETRIEVAL REQUESTS. In order to comply with Retrieval Requests, Merchant shall store and retain Transaction Data and Transaction Receipts in 
compliance with the Payment Brand Rules, including any time frames set forth therein.  Within seven (7) days (or such shorter time as the Payment Brand 
Rules may require) of Chase Paymentech sending Merchant a Retrieval Request, Merchant must provide to Chase Paymentech, via certified or overnight 
mail or by confirmed fax, (a) written resolution of Merchant’s investigation of such Retrieval Request; and (b) legible copies of any supporting 
documentation requested or required by the Retrieval Request.  Merchant acknowledges that failure to fulfill a Retrieval Request timely and in accordance 
with Payment Brand Rules may result in an irreversible Chargeback.  
 
7. CHARGEBACKS. 
7.1 Chargeback Reasons. Merchant has full liability for all Chargebacks.  Following are some of the most common reasons for Chargebacks:  
 
 (a) Merchant fails to issue a Refund to a Customer upon the return or non-delivery of goods or services; 
 (b) A required authorization/approval code was not obtained; 
 (c) The Transaction Data was prepared incorrectly or fraudulently; 
 (d) Chase Paymentech did not receive Merchant’s response to a Retrieval Request in accordance with Section 6; 
 (e) The Customer disputes the Transaction or the authenticity of the signature on the Transaction Receipt, or claims that the Transaction is subject to a 
set-off, defense, or counterclaim; 
 (f) The Customer refuses to make payment for a Transaction because, in the Customer’s opinion, a claim or complaint has not been resolved or has 
been resolved in an unsatisfactory manner; or 
 (g) The credit or debit card comprising the Payment Instrument was not actually presented at the time of the Transaction or Merchant failed to obtain an 
electronic record or physical imprint of such Payment Instrument, and the Customer denies making the purchase.   
 
7.2 Response to Chargebacks.  If Merchant has reason to dispute or respond to a Chargeback, then Merchant must do so by the date provided on the 
applicable Chargeback notice.  Chase Paymentech will not investigate or attempt to obtain a reversal or other adjustment to any Chargeback if Merchant 
has not timely responded to the notice. 
 
7.3 Excessive Chargebacks. If Merchant is receiving an excessive amount of Chargebacks, as determined by the Payment Brands from time to time, in 
addition to Chase Paymentech’s other remedies under this Agreement, Chase Paymentech may take one or more of the following actions: (a) review 
Merchant’s internal procedures relating to acceptance of Payment Instruments and notify Merchant of new procedures Merchant should adopt in order to 
avoid future Chargebacks; (b) notify Merchant of a new rate Chase Paymentech will charge to process Merchant’s Chargebacks; or (c) establish a 
Reserve Account.  Merchant also agrees to pay any and all penalties, fees, fines, and costs assessed against Merchant, Chase Paymentech, and/or 
Member relating to Merchant’s violation of this Agreement or the Payment Brand Rules with respect to Merchant’s acceptance of Payment Instruments, its 
Transactions, or with respect to excessive Chargebacks under this Section. 
 
7.4 Claims of Customers. Following a Chargeback, Merchant may resubmit applicable Transaction Data for a second presentment, but only in 
accordance with Payment Brand Rules. To the extent Chase Paymentech has paid or may be called upon to pay a Chargeback or Refund for or on the 
account of a Customer and Merchant does not reimburse Chase Paymentech as provided in this Agreement, then for the purpose of Chase Paymentech 
obtaining reimbursement of such sums paid or anticipated to be paid, Chase Paymentech has all of the rights and remedies of such Customer under 
applicable federal, state, or local laws and Merchant authorizes Chase Paymentech to assert any and all such claims in its own name for and on behalf of 
any such Customer individually or all such Customers as a class. 
 
8. DISPLAY OF PAYMENT BRAND MARKS.  Merchant is prohibited from using the Payment Brand Marks, as defined below (sometimes referred to herein as 
“Marks”), other than as expressly authorized by Chase Paymentech in writing or by the Payment Brands.  Payment Brand Marks mean the brands, 
emblems, trademarks and/or logos that identify a Payment Brand.  Additionally, Merchant shall not use the Payment Brand Marks other than to display 
decals, signage, advertising, and other forms depicting the Payment Brand Marks that are provided to Merchant (a) by the Payment Brands; (b) by Chase 
Paymentech pursuant to this Agreement; or (c) as otherwise approved in writing by Chase Paymentech.  Merchant may use the Payment Brand Marks 
only to promote the services covered by the Marks by using them on decals, indoor and outdoor signs, advertising materials, and marketing materials; 
provided, that all such uses by Merchant must be approved by Chase Paymentech and consistent with Payment Brand Rules.  Merchant shall not use the 
Payment Brand Marks in any way that Customers could believe that the goods or services offered by Merchant are sponsored, endorsed, or guaranteed 
by the owners of the Payment Brand Marks.  Merchant recognizes that it has no ownership rights in the Payment Brand Marks.  Merchant shall not assign 
the rights to use the Payment Brand Marks to any third party.  Merchant’s right to use the Payment Brand Marks hereunder terminates with the termination 
of this Agreement. 
 
9. FEES; ADJUSTMENTS.  
9.1 Schedule A. Merchant shall pay all applicable fees for all Transactions, which shall be calculated and payable pursuant to this Agreement.  Merchant 
acknowledges that the fees stated in Schedule A are based upon the assumption that Merchant’s Transactions will qualify for certain interchange rates as 
determined in each case by the applicable Payment Brand.  If any of Merchant’s Transactions fail to qualify for such interchange rates, Chase 
Paymentech shall process each such Transaction at the applicable interchange rate determined by the applicable Payment Brand.  Unless otherwise 
indicated on Schedule A, Merchant shall be solely responsible for all communication expenses required to facilitate the transmission of all Transaction 
Data to Chase Paymentech. Fees payable under this Agreement that contain a fraction of a cent will be rounded up to the next full cent.    
 
9.2 Price Adjustments. Fees set forth in this Agreement are based upon Merchant’s annual volume, average Transaction size, and other 
information provided by Merchant or contained in this Agreement.  Chase Paymentech may modify the pricing provisions in this Agreement with 30 days' 
prior written notice to Merchant.  Furthermore, the fees set forth on Schedule A and any additional pricing supplements may be adjusted to reflect 
increases by Payment Brands in interchange, assessments, or other Payment Brand fees, additional fees imposed by the Payment Brands, or increases 
in third party fees identified in this Agreement.  Merchant shall pay all such fees, as so adjusted.  Each such adjustment shall become effective upon the 
date the corresponding increase or additional fee is implemented by the Payment Brand or third party provider. 
  
 



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 9 of 14 
 
10. TERMINATION.  
10.1 Term.  This Agreement takes effect on the date it is accepted and agreed to by Chase Paymentech (by signature or otherwise; the “Effective Date”) 
and shall continue until terminated by either party as provided herein. 
 
10.2 Merchant Termination.  Subject to the terms of this Section 10.2, Merchant may terminate this Agreement at any time by providing thirty (30) days 
prior notice to Chase Paymentech.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY HEREIN, IF MERCHANT TERMINATES THE AGREEMENT 
WITHIN TWENTY FOUR (24) MONTHS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE, MERCHANT MAY BE OBLIGATED TO REPAY, AS APPLICABLE, ANY 
PROMOTIONAL CONSIDERATION, WHICH SHALL BE DEFINED AS: (A) A PRORATED PORTION OF ANY SIGNING BONUS; (B) THE ESTIMATED 
RETAIL VALUE OF ANY FREE POINT OF SALE TERMINAL OR OTHER EQUIPMENT PROVIDED TO MERCHANT IN PROMOTION OF THIS 
AGREEMENT; AND (C) THE AMOUNT OR VALUE OF ANY OTHER PROMOTION EXTENDED TO MERCHANT IN CONSIDERATION OF THIS 
AGREEMENT. IN THE EVENT MERCHANT’S PAYMENT OF SUCH PROMOTIONAL CONSIDERATION IS LIMITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE 
AMOUNT PAYABLE TO CHASE PAYMENTECH PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT PERMITTED 
UNDER APPLICABLE LAW.  ALL AMOUNTS OWED UNDER THIS SECTION 10.2 WILL BE FUNDED, TO THE EXTENT POSSIBLE, ACCORDING TO 
THE SAME METHODS FOR COLLECTING AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
10.3  Chase Paymentech Termination.  Chase Paymentech may terminate this Agreement at any time upon notice to Merchant as a result of any of the 
following events:  
  (a) any transfer or assignment in violation of Section 15.3 of this Agreement;  
 (b) irregular Transactions by Merchant, excessive Chargebacks, or any other circumstances which, in Chase Paymentech’s discretion, may increase 
Chase Paymentech’s or Member’s exposure for Merchant’s Chargebacks or otherwise present an Anticipated Risk to Chase Paymentech;  
 (c) any representation or warranty in this Agreement is breached in any material respect or was or is incorrect in any material respect when made or 
deemed to be made;  
 (d) Merchant fails in any material respect to perform any of its obligations with respect to the funding or establishing of a Reserve Account, as detailed 
in Section 4.6;  
  (e)  material breach of Section 1.1;  
  (f) Merchant fails in any material respect in performance or observance of any term, covenant, condition, or agreement contained in this Agreement, 
including, without limitation, compliance with Payment Brand Rules and Security Standards;  
  (g) a case or other proceeding shall be commenced by or against Merchant in any court of competent jurisdiction seeking relief under the Bankruptcy 
Code or under any other laws, domestic or foreign, relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, winding up, or adjustment of debts, the appointment 
of a trustee, receiver, custodian, liquidator, or the like of Merchant, or of all or any substantial part of the assets, domestic or foreign, of Merchant, and 
such case or proceeding shall continue undismissed or unstayed for a period of 60 consecutive days, or an order granting the relief requested in such 
case or proceeding against Merchant (including, without limitation, an order for relief under the Bankruptcy Code) shall be entered;  
  (h) Chase Paymentech, in its sole reasonable discretion, deems Merchant to be financially insecure;  
  (i) any Payment Brand (i) notifies Chase Paymentech or Member that it is no longer willing to accept Merchant’s Transaction Data; or (ii) requires 
Chase Paymentech or Member to terminate or limit this Agreement;  
  (j) Merchant or any person owning or controlling Merchant’s business is listed in one or more databases of terminated or high risk merchants 
maintained by the Payment Brands;  
  (k) Merchant engages in conduct that creates or could tend to create harm or loss to the goodwill of any Payment Brand, Chase Paymentech, or 
Member;  
  (l) for a period of more than 60 consecutive days, Merchant does not transmit Transaction Data to Chase Paymentech; or  
    (m) Merchant fails to comply with Section 15.15. 
 
Furthermore, Chase Paymentech may terminate this Agreement at anytime and for any reason upon thirty (30) days notice to Merchant.  In addition to the 
remedies above and any rights Chase Paymentech may have under this Agreement, Chase Paymentech may suspend the processing of some or all of 
Merchant’s Transactions upon: (a) receipt by Chase Paymentech of notice that a Payment Brand intends to impose any fine or penalty as a result of 
excessive Chargebacks or Merchant’s acts or omissions; or (b) receipt by Chase Paymentech of objections or concerns expressed by a Payment Brand 
which render Chase Paymentech’s continued processing of Merchant’s Transactions unduly burdensome, impractical, or risky. If this Agreement is 
terminated by Chase Paymentech for Merchant’s default hereunder, Merchant acknowledges that Chase Paymentech may be required to report 
Merchant’s business name and the names and other identification of its principals to the Payment Brands.  Merchant expressly agrees and consents to 
such reporting in the event Merchant is terminated for any reason specified, and Merchant agrees to waive and hold Chase Paymentech harmless from 
and against any and all claims which Merchant may have as a result of such reporting. 
 
10.4  Active Account. Furthermore, Merchant hereby agrees that if Chase Paymentech determines, in its sole discretion, that Merchant is not maintaining 
an Active account with Chase Paymentech (as defined herein), Chase Paymentech reserve the right to terminate this Agreement and , if such termination 
occurs within twenty four months of the Effective Date, collect from Merchant the PROMOTIONAL CONSIDERATION set forth in Section 10.2.  For 
purposes of the foregoing sentence, a merchant account is considered “Active” if, among other things, Merchant continues to make on-time payments of 
all amounts owed under the Agreement.  If Merchant goes more than 90 consecutive days without making an on-time payment of all amounts owed under 
the Agreement, Chase Paymentech reserves the right to deem Merchant’s account as not Active.  
 
10.5 Account Activity After Termination; Termination Reserve.  The provisions governing processing and settlement of Transactions, all related 
adjustments, fees and other amounts due from Merchant, and the resolution of any related Chargebacks, disputes, or other issues involving Transactions, 
will continue to apply even after termination of this Agreement, with respect to all Transactions made prior to such termination or after such termination, as 
described below.  After termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, Merchant shall continue to bear total responsibility for all Chargebacks, 
fees, fines, assessments, credits, and adjustments resulting from Transactions processed pursuant to this Agreement and all other amounts then due or 
which thereafter may become due to Chase Paymentech under this Agreement or which may be due to Chase Paymentech before or after such 
termination to either Chase Paymentech or Member. If Merchant submits Transaction Data to Chase Paymentech after the date of termination, Chase 
Paymentech may, at its sole discretion and without waiving any of its rights or remedies under this Agreement, process such Transaction Data in 
accordance with and subject to all of the terms of this Agreement.   



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 10 of 14 
 
 
Upon notice of termination of this Agreement, Chase Paymentech may estimate the aggregate dollar amount of anticipated Chargebacks, Refunds and 
Anticipated Risks that Chase Paymentech reasonably anticipates subsequent to termination, and Merchant agrees to immediately deposit such amount in 
its Settlement Account, or Chase Paymentech may withhold such amount from Merchant’s settlement funds in order to establish a Reserve Account 
pursuant to and governed by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
11. INDEMNIFICATION. Merchant agrees to indemnify Chase Paymentech, Member, the Payment Brands, and their respective affiliates, officers, directors, 
employees, agents, and sponsoring banks from any losses, liabilities, and damages of any and every kind (including, without limitation, Chase 
Paymentech’s costs, expenses, and reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising out of (a) Chase Paymentech’s reliance on the information provided by Merchant, 
or Merchant’s Authorized Representative, on the Application or in conjunction with the Application (including any information with respect to Merchant’s 
financial condition); and (b) any claim, complaint, or Chargeback (i) made or claimed by a Customer with respect to any Transaction or Transaction Data 
submitted by Merchant; (ii) caused by Merchant’s noncompliance with this Agreement or the Payment Brand Rules (including without limitation any breach 
of a representation or warranty made by Merchant or Merchant’s failure to comply with the Security Standards); (iii) resulting from any voluntary or 
involuntary bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding by or against Merchant; or (iv) related to Merchant’s placement or the placement of any person owning or 
controlling Merchant’s business in one or more databases of terminated or high risk merchants maintained by the Payment Brands.  The indemnification 
provided for in this Section does not apply to any claim or complaint to the extent it is caused by Chase Paymentech’s own negligence or willful 
misconduct.  The indemnification provided under this Section 11 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
12. TRANSACTION DATA AND PAYMENT INSTRUMENT INFORMATION; PAYMENT CARD INDUSTRY COMPLIANCE.    
12.1   Merchant financial information, information related to Merchant’s Transactions, and other information that Merchant provides to Chase Paymentech 
may be shared by Chase Paymentech with its affiliates.  Chase Paymentech will not otherwise disclose or use such information other than (i) as 
necessary to process Merchant’s Transactions or otherwise provide services and maintain Merchant’s account pursuant to this Agreement; (ii) to detect, 
prevent, reduce, or otherwise address fraud, security, or technical issues; (iii) to enhance or improve Chase Paymentech’s products and services 
generally; or (iv) as required or permitted by the Payment Brands or applicable law.  Chase Paymentech may prepare, use, and/or share with third parties, 
aggregated, non-personally identifiable information derived from Transaction Data of all of Chase Paymentech’s customers or specific segments of Chase 
Paymentech’s customers. 
 
12.2  Payment Card Industry Compliance.  Merchant acknowledges and understands the importance of compliance with the Security Standards, such 
as those relating to the storage and disclosure of Transaction Data and Payment Instrument Information.  Therefore, Merchant shall exercise reasonable 
care to prevent disclosure or use of Payment Instrument Information, other than (a) to Merchant’s agents and contractors for the purpose of assisting 
Merchant in completing a Transaction; (b) to the applicable Payment Brand; or (c) as specifically required by law.  Furthermore, Merchant acknowledges 
and understands that its use of any fraud mitigation or security enhancement solution (e.g. an encryption product or service), whether provided to 
Merchant by Chase Paymentech or a third party, in no way limits Merchant’s obligation to comply with the Security Standards or Merchant’s liabilities set 
forth in this Agreement. 
 
Merchant is allowed by the Payment Brand Rules to store only certain Payment Instrument Information (currently limited to the Customer's name, 
Payment Instrument account number, and expiration date) and is prohibited from storing additional Payment Instrument Information, including, without 
limitation, any security code data, such as CVV2, CVC2, and PIN data, and any magnetic stripe track data.  Merchant shall store all media containing 
Payment Instrument Information in an unreadable format wherever it is stored and in an area limited to selected personnel on a “need to know” basis only. 
Prior to either party discarding any material containing Payment Instrument Information, the party will render the account numbers unreadable in 
accordance with the requirements of the Security Standards.  If at any time Merchant determines or suspects that Payment Instrument Information has 
been compromised Merchant must notify Chase Paymentech immediately and assist in providing notification to such parties as may be required by law or 
Payment Brand Rules, or as Chase Paymentech otherwise reasonably deems necessary.  
 
Merchant agrees to comply with all Security Standards, as defined in Section 17.  Merchant further agrees to provide Chase Paymentech, upon its 
request, with such tests, scans, and assessments of Merchant’s compliance with Security Standards as may from time to time be required by the Payment 
Brands.   
 
Merchant must immediately notify Paymentech of its use of any Service Provider. Merchant shall ensure that, to the extent required by each Payment 
Brand, its Service Providers are (w) compliant with all applicable Security Standards; and (x) appropriately registered with, or otherwise recognized as 
being compliant with the Security Standards, by all applicable Payment Brands.   To the extent required by each Payment Brand, all Payment 
Applications, or software involved in processing, storing, receiving, or transmitting of Payment Instrument Information, shall be (y) compliant with all 
Security Standards applicable to such Payment Applications or software; and (z) registered with and/or recognized by such Payment Brand(s) as being so 
compliant.   
 
Merchant understands that its failure, or the failure of any of its Service Providers, to comply with the Payment Brand Rules, including the Security 
Standards, or the compromise of any of  Payment Instrument Information (whether such Payment Instrument Information is under the control of Merchant 
or its Service Provider), may result in assessments, fines, and/or penalties by the Payment Brands, and Merchant agrees to indemnify and reimburse 
Chase Paymentech immediately for any such assessment, fine, or penalty imposed on Chase Paymentech or the Member and any related loss, cost, or 
expense incurred by Chase Paymentech or the Member.  If Chase Paymentech, in its sole discretion based on information provided by the Payment 
Brands or Payment Instrument issuers, or any Payment Brand requires a forensic examination of Merchant or any of Merchant’s Service Providers due to 
a Data Compromise Event or suspected event, Merchant agrees to cooperate with, and cause all applicable Service Providers to cooperate with, such 
forensic examination within the time frame dictated by Chase Paymentech or the Payment Brand and until it is completed, including, without limitation, the 
engagement of an examiner acceptable to Chase Paymentech and/or the relevant Payment Brand.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Payment Brands 
may directly, or demand that Chase Paymentech, engage an examiner on behalf of the Merchant or Merchant’s Service Provider in order to expedite the 
investigation of the Data Compromise Event or suspected event.  In either scenario, Merchant agrees to (aa) pay for all costs and expenses related to 
such forensic examination (including all of Chase Paymentech’s reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs relating to such forensic examination), (bb) 
take all actions necessary to achieve compliance in accordance with the results set forth in the forensic report and in the timeframe dictated by Chase 



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 11 of 14 
 
Paymentech and/or the Payment Brand, and (cc) thereafter, take all actions necessary to maintain compliance with Payment Brand Rules and Security 
Standards. 
 
By executing this Agreement, Merchant represents that, in the event of its failure, including bankruptcy, insolvency, or other suspension of business 
operations, Merchant shall not sell, transfer, or disclose to third parties any materials that contain Transaction Data or Payment Instrument Information.  
Upon request, Merchant must return such information to Chase Paymentech or provide Chase Paymentech with acceptable proof of its destruction. 
 
13. INFORMATION ABOUT MERCHANT AND MERCHANT’S BUSINESS. 
13.1 Additional Financial Information. Upon five (5) days’ written notice at any time, Merchant and each Guarantor (if any) agrees to furnish to Chase 
Paymentech all reasonable financial statements and information as Chase Paymentech may request relating to Merchant and each Guarantor, as well as 
their parents, subsidiaries and affiliated entities. 
 
13.2 Audit Rights; Site Visit; Website Inspection.  With prior notice and during Merchant’s normal business hours, Chase Paymentech’s duly 
authorized representatives may visit Merchant’s business premises and may examine Merchant’s books and records that pertain to Merchant’s 
Transactions or Merchant’s compliance with this Agreement.  Furthermore, Merchant may be contacted by Chase Paymentech or a third party contracted 
by Chase Paymentech who will need to gain access to Merchant’s business operation to perform a site visit and inspection (the “Site Visit”) in compliance 
with Payment Brand Rules.  The Site Visit shall include, among other things, an interview with Merchant regarding the nature of Merchant’s business, as 
well as photographs of Merchant’s business operation.  If Merchant is unavailable for the Site Visit as scheduled, Chase Paymentech may suspend the 
settlement of Merchant’s Transactions until a Site Visit can be completed and approved by Chase Paymentech.  If Merchant operates an ecommerce 
website, Chase Paymentech is obligated under the Payment Brand Rules to investigate the contents of such website, either directly or through review of 
screen shots presented to Chase Paymentech by Merchant (the “Website Inspection”). Chase Paymentech may suspend the settlement of Merchant’s 
Transactions until a Website Inspection can be completed and approved by Chase Paymentech.  In the event that Merchant fails to reasonably cooperate 
with the required Site Visit and/or Website Inspection, or in the event the results of the Site Visit or the Website Inspection are not approved by Chase 
Paymentech, Chase Paymentech may terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice to Merchant.   
 
13.3 Other Information.  Merchant agrees to provide Chase Paymentech at least 30 days' prior written notice of its intent to change current product lines 
or services, Merchant’s trade name, or the manner in which Merchant accepts Payment Instruments.  If Chase Paymentech determines such a change is 
material to its relationship with Merchant, Chase Paymentech may refuse to process Transaction Data made subsequent to the change or terminate this 
Agreement.  Merchant agrees to provide Chase Paymentech with prompt written notice if Merchant is the subject of any voluntary or involuntary 
bankruptcy or insolvency petition or proceeding.  Merchant’s signature on this Agreement authorizes Chase Paymentech to perform any credit check 
deemed necessary with respect to Merchant.  Merchant will also provide Chase Paymentech with prompt written notice of (i) any adverse change in 
Merchant’s financial condition, (ii) any planned or anticipated liquidation or substantial change the basic nature of Merchant’s business, (iii) any transfer or 
sale of any substantial part (25% or more in value) of Merchant’s total assets, or (iv) if Merchant or Merchant’s parent is not a corporation whose shares 
are listed on a national securities exchange or on the over-the-counter market, any change in the control or ownership of Merchant or Merchant’s parent.  
Merchant will also notify Chase Paymentech of any judgment, writ, warrant of attachment, execution or levy against any substantial part (25% or more in 
value) of Merchant’s total assets not later than three days after Merchant obtains knowledge of any such judgment, writ, warrant of attachment, execution 
or levy. 
 
14. DISCLAIMER; LIMITATION OF DAMAGES.  Subject to Section 5, Chase Paymentech will, at its own expense, correct any Transaction Data to the extent that 
such errors have been caused by Chase Paymentech or by malfunctions of Chase Paymentech’s processing systems.  Under no circumstances will 
Chase Paymentech’s financial responsibility for its failure of performance under this Agreement exceed the total fees paid to Chase Paymentech under 
this Agreement (net of Payment Brand fees, third party fees, interchange, assessments, penalties, and fines) for the six months prior to the time the 
liability arose. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND EXCEPT WITH RESPECT TO MERCHANT’S FAILURE TO 
COMPLY WITH THE SECURITY STANDARDS, IN NO EVENT WILL ANY PARTY, ITS RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, OR 
AFFILIATES, BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OR ACTION 
AND EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, OR ANY LOSS, THEFT, DISAPPEARANCE, OR DAMAGE TO DATA 
TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT.  ANY FINES, FEES, PENALTIES OR ASSESSMENTS IMPOSED 
BY THE PAYMENT BRANDS RELATED TO MERCHANT’S ACCEPTANCE OF PAYMENT INSTRUMENTS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO BE 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. ALL PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS IS AN AGREEMENT FOR COMMERCIAL SERVICES. THE UNIFORM 
COMMERCIAL CODE DOES NOT APPLY AND CHASE PAYMENTECH AND MEMBER HEREBY DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, MADE TO MERCHANT OR ANY OTHER PERSON, REGARDING QUALITY, SUITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR OTHERWISE (REGARDLESS OF ANY COURSE OF DEALING, CUSTOM, OR USAGE OF TRADE) OF ANY 
SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY GOODS PROVIDED INCIDENTAL TO SUCH SERVICES.   
 
15. MISCELLANEOUS. 
15.1 Taxes. Unless Merchant is otherwise exempt, and, if applicable, provides a valid exemption certificate, Merchant agrees to pay any taxes imposed 
on the services, equipment, supplies, and other property provided under this Agreement, and Merchant authorizes Chase Paymentech to increase the 
amount collected from Merchant to reflect any and all assessments or increases in the sales, use, occupational, property, lease, or other taxes imposed 
on such sale or lease of services, tangible property, intellectual property, equipment, supplies, and other goods purchased. 
 
15.2 Section Headings.  The section headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and do not define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of this 
Agreement. 
 
15.3 Assignment. Any transfer or assignment of this Agreement by Merchant, by operation of law, merger, or otherwise without Chase Paymentech’s 
prior written consent is null and void. In the event of such transfer or assignment, the party to whom the Agreement was transferred or assigned shall be 
bound to the terms and conditions of this Agreement to the same extent as if Chase Paymentech, Member and such assignee or transferee, as the case 
may be, entered into an agreement identical to this Agreement on the effective date of such transfer or assignment. Furthermore, Merchant shall 
indemnify and hold Chase Paymentech and Member harmless from all liabilities, Chargebacks, expenses, costs, fees, and fines arising in connection with 



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 12 of 14 
 
the submission of Transaction Data to Chase Paymentech by such transferee or assignee. For purposes of this Agreement any transfer of voting control 
of Merchant or its parent, or the sale of all or substantially all of Merchant’s assets, shall be considered an assignment or transfer hereof. Upon notice to 
Merchant, another Payment Brand member may be substituted for Member under whose sponsorship this Agreement is performed and for whom Chase 
Paymentech is acting as agent hereunder.  Subject to Payment Brand Rules, Chase Paymentech may assign or transfer this Agreement and its rights and 
obligations hereunder and may delegate its duties hereunder, in whole or in part, to any third party, whether in connection with a change in sponsorship, 
as set forth in the preceding sentence, or otherwise, without notice to or consent of Merchant.  No assignee for the benefit of creditors, custodian, receiver, 
trustee in bankruptcy, debtor in possession, sheriff or any other officer of a court, or other person charged with taking custody of a party's assets or 
business, shall have any right to continue or to assume or to assign this Agreement. 
 
15.4 Parties; Independent Contractor.  This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, administrators, 
representatives, and permitted successors and assigns.  Merchant agrees that it is responsible for its employees’ actions.  In providing services to 
Merchant, Chase Paymentech will not be acting in the capacity of agent, partner, or joint venturer; Chase Paymentech is acting solely as an independent 
contractor.   
 
15.5  Representations.  Merchant represents and warrants that statements made on its Application are true as of the date of this Agreement.  Merchant 
represents and warrants that its execution of and performance under this Agreement (a) in no way breaches, contravenes, violates, or in any manner 
conflicts with any of its other legal obligations, including, without limitation, its corporate charter or similar document or any agreement between Merchant 
and any third party or any affiliated entity; (b) has been duly authorized by all necessary action and does not require any consent or other action by or in respect 
of any third party; and (c) that the person signing this Agreement on behalf of Merchant is an Authorized Representative.  Merchant shall perform its obligations 
under this Agreement in compliance with all applicable laws. 
 
15.6  Publicity.  Each party agrees that any other party may publicly disclose, through press releases or otherwise, the existence of the business 
relationship that is the subject of this Agreement.  Any such disclosure may identify the parties by name but shall not, without the prior written consent of 
the non-disclosing party, include any of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
15.7 Severability.  Should any provision of this Agreement be determined to be invalid or unenforceable under any law, rule, or regulation, including any 
Payment Brand Rule, such determination will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement. 
 
15.8 Waivers.  No term or condition of this Agreement may be waived except pursuant to a written waiver executed by the party against whom such 
waiver is sought to be enforced. 
 
15.9 Entire Agreement. The Payment Brand Rules, Application, Terms and Conditions, taxpayer identification and certification documentation, and all 
schedules, supplements, and attachments are made a part of this Agreement for all purposes.  This Agreement represents the entire understanding 
between Merchant and Chase Paymentech with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes any prior agreements between the parties.  
Merchant agrees that in entering into this Agreement it has not relied on any statement of Chase Paymentech or its representatives. This Agreement shall 
prevail over any conflicting terms of any agreement governing the Settlement Account.   
 
15.10 Notices.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices must be given in writing and either hand delivered, faxed, mailed first class, 
postage prepaid, sent via electronic mail transmission, or sent via overnight courier (and will be deemed to be given when so delivered or mailed) to 
Merchant’s legal address set forth in the Application, to Chase Paymentech at: Attn: Legal Department, 14221 Dallas Parkway, Dallas, Texas 75254,  or to 
such other address as either party may from time to time specify to the other party in writing.  
 
15.11 Governing Law; Waiver of Right to Contest Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial; Arbitration.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas without reference to conflict of law provisions.  Any action, proceeding, arbitration hearing or mediation 
relating to or arising from this Agreement must be brought, held, or otherwise occur in Dallas County, Dallas, Texas.  PLEASE READ THIS PROVISION 
CAREFULLY.  IT PROVIDES THAT ANY CLAIM MAY BE RESOLVED BY BINDING ARBITRATION.  WITH BINDING ARBITRATION MERCHANT 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT (i) MERCHANT IS GIVING UP ITS RIGHT TO HAVE A TRIAL BY JURY TO RESOLVE ANY CLAIM 
ALLEGED AGAINST CHASE PAYMENTECH, MEMBER, OR RELATED THIRD PARTIES; (ii) MERCHANT IS GIVING UP ITS RIGHT TO HAVE A 
COURT RESOLVE ANY CLAIM ALLEGED AGAINST CHASE PAYMENTECH, MEMBER OR RELATED THIRD PARTIES; (iii) MERCHANT IS GIVING 
UP ITS RIGHT TO SERVE AS A REPRESENTATIVE, AS A PRIVATE ATTORNEY GENERAL, OR IN ANY OTHER REPRESENTATIVE CAPACITY, 
AND/OR TO PARTICIPATE AS A MEMBER OF A CLASS OF CLAIMANTS, IN ANY LAWSUIT OR ARBITRATION FILED AGAINST CHASE 
PAYMENTECH, MEMBER AND/OR RELATED THIRD PARTIES.  Any claim, dispute, or controversy ("Claim") by either Merchant, Chase Paymentech or 
Member against the other, or against the officers, directors, employees, agents, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, beneficiaries, agents, successors, or 
assigns of the other, arising from or relating in any way to this Agreement or to the relationship formed between the parties as a result of this Agreement, 
including Claims regarding the applicability of this arbitration clause or the validity of the entire Agreement, shall be resolved exclusively and finally by 
binding arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”).  All Claims are subject to arbitration, no matter what theory they are 
based on.  This includes Claims based on contract, tort (including intentional tort), fraud, agency, Merchant, Chase Paymentech’s or Member’s 
negligence, statutory or regulatory provisions, or any other source of law.  Claims and remedies sought as part of a class action, private attorney general, 
or other representative action are subject to arbitration on an individual (non-class, non-representative) basis only, and the arbitrator may award relief only 
on an individual (non-class, non-representative) basis.  Merchant and Chase Paymentech will agree on another arbitration forum if the AAA ceases 
operations.  The arbitration will be conducted before a single arbitrator and will be limited solely to the Claim between Merchant and Chase Paymentech 
and/or Member.  The arbitration, or any portion of it, will not be consolidated with any other arbitration and will not be conducted on a class-wide or class 
action basis. The prohibition against class action contained in this Section shall be non-severable from the remainder of this Section.  If either party 
prevails in the arbitration of any Claim against the other, the non-prevailing party will reimburse the prevailing party for any fees it paid to the AAA in 
connection with the arbitration, as well as for any reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by the prevailing party in connection with such arbitration.  Any 
decision rendered in such arbitration proceedings will be final and binding on the parties, and judgment may be entered in a court of competent 
jurisdiction.  Rules and forms of the AAA may be obtained and Claims may be filed at any AAA office, www.adr.org, or 335 Madison Avenue, New York, 
NY 10017, telephone 1-800-778-7879.  Any arbitration hearing at which Merchant appears will take place at a location within Dallas County, Dallas, 



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 13 of 14 
 
Texas.  This arbitration agreement is made pursuant to a transaction involving interstate commerce, and shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 
9 U.S.C. §§ 1-16.  This arbitration agreement applies to all Claims now in existence or that may arise in the future.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed to prevent any party's use of (or advancement of any Claims, defenses, or offsets in) bankruptcy or repossession, replevin, judicial foreclosure 
or any other prejudgment or provisional remedy relating to any collateral, security, or other property interests for contractual debts now or hereafter owned 
by either party to the other.  IN THE ABSENCE OF THIS ARBITRATION AGREEMENT, MERCHANT AND CHASE PAYMENTECH MAY OTHERWISE 
HAVE HAD A RIGHT OR OPPORTUNITY TO LITIGATE CLAIMS THROUGH A COURT BEFORE A JUDGE OR A JURY AND/OR TO PARTICIPATE 
OR BE REPRESENTED IN LITIGATION FILED IN COURT BY OTHERS (INCLUDING CLASS ACTIONS), BUT EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED 
ABOVE, THOSE RIGHTS, INCLUDING ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL, ARE WAIVED AND ALL CLAIMS MUST NOW BE RESOLVED THROUGH 
ARBITRATION. 
 
15.12 Force Majeure. Neither party will be liable for delays in processing or other nonperformance caused by such events as fires, telecommunications 
failures, utility failures, power failures, equipment failures, labor strife, riots, war, terrorist attack, nonperformance of Chase Paymentech’s vendors or 
suppliers, acts of God, or other causes over which the respective party has no reasonable control, except that nothing in this Section 15.12 will affect or 
excuse Merchant’s liabilities and obligations for Chargebacks, refunds, or unfulfilled goods and services. 
 
15.13 Amendment.  Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, the Agreement may be amended at any time by Chase Paymentech upon thirty (30) 
days’ notice to Merchant.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the terms of this Agreement must be amended pursuant to a change required by the 
Payment Brand Rules or any third party with jurisdiction over the matters described herein, such amendment will be effective immediately. Merchant’s 
electronic signature or continued submission of Transactions to Chase Paymentech following such notice will be deemed to be Merchant’s acceptance of 
such amendment. 
 
15.14 Counterparts and Electronic Signature.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but 
all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.  A signature received via facsimile or electronically via email shall be as legally binding 
for all purposes as an original signature. 
 
15.15  Merchant Taxpayer Certification and Chase Paymentech Reporting Obligations.  Pursuant to 26 USC 6050W, Chase Paymentech is a 
“payment settlement entity”, obligated to collect and report certain taxpayer information to the United States Internal Revenue Service.  Therefore, in 
conjunction with the execution of this Agreement, Merchant shall provide Chase Paymentech with the appropriate taxpayer certification documentation, via 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 (or the appropriate versions of Form W-8, if applicable).  Merchant shall promptly notify Chase Paymentech if 
there are any changes in this information.  Chase Paymentech may deduct withholding taxes, if any, from proceeds payable to Merchant or any entity that 
is a party to this agreement where required under Applicable Law.  Chase Paymentech may, in accordance with Applicable Law and from time to time 
during the term of this Agreement, request Merchant to recertify its taxpayer certification hereunder.  Furthermore, Merchant shall be responsible for any 
penalties related to the reporting obligations of Chase Paymentech hereunder to the extent such penalties accrue based on the actions or inactions of 
Merchant despite reasonable notice from Chase Paymentech. 
 
16. SURVIVAL.  The provisions of Sections 4.2, 4.4, 4.5, 4.6, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10.2, 10.3, 10.4, 10.5, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17 and Personal Guaranty shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 
 
17. DEFINITIONS. 
“Application” means a statement of Merchant’s financial condition, a description of the characteristics of Merchant’s business or organization, and related 
information Merchant or its Authorized Representative(s), has previously or concurrently submitted to Chase Paymentech, including credit, financial and 
other business related information, to induce Chase Paymentech to enter into this Agreement with Merchant and that has induced Chase Paymentech to 
process Merchant’s Transactions under the terms and conditions herein.  
“Authorized Representative” means an owner, partner, officer or other agent of the Merchant that is duly authorized to enter into agreements on behalf 
of Merchant and to legally bind Merchant to such agreements 
“Chargeback” means a reversal of a Transaction Merchant previously presented to Chase Paymentech pursuant to Payment Brand Rules. 
“Chase Paymentech” or “Paymentech” means Paymentech, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having its principal office at 14221 Dallas 
Parkway, Dallas, Texas 75254.  
“Conveyed Transaction” means any Transaction conveyed to a Payment Brand for settlement by such Payment Brand directly to Merchant.  
“Customer” means the person or entity to whom a Payment Instrument is issued or who is otherwise authorized to use a Payment Instrument. 
“Data Compromise Event” means an occurrence that results, or could result, directly or indirectly, in the unauthorized access to or disclosure of 
Transaction Data and/or Payment Instrument Information. 
“Effective Date” means the date the Agreement takes effect pursuant to Section 10.1.  
“Merchant” means the legal entity identified in the Application and on the first and signature pages of this Agreement. 
“Member” means JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. or other entity providing sponsorship to Chase Paymentech as required by all applicable Payment Brands.  
Member is a principal party to this Agreement and Merchant’s acceptance of Payment Brand products is extended by the Member. 
“Payment Application” means a third party application used by merchant that is involved in the authorization or settlement of Transaction Data. 
“Payment Brand” means any payment method provider whose payment method is accepted by Chase Paymentech for processing, including, without 
limitation, Visa Inc., MasterCard International, Inc., Discover Financial Services, LLC, and other credit and debit card providers, debit network providers, 
gift card, and other stored value and loyalty program providers.  Payment Brand also includes the Payment Card Industry Security Standards Council. 
“Payment Brand Rules” means all bylaws, rules, programs, and regulations, as they exist from time to time, of the Payment Brands.   
“Payment Instrument” or “Payment Card” means an account, or evidence of an account, authorized and established between a Customer and a 
Payment Brand, or representatives or members of a Payment Brand that Merchant accepts from Customers as payment for a good or service.  Payment 
Instruments include, but are not limited to, credit and debit cards, stored value cards, loyalty cards, electronic gift cards, authorized account or access 
numbers, paper certificates, and credit accounts. 
“Payment Instrument Information” means information related to a Customer or the Customer’s Payment Instrument, that is obtained by Merchant from 
the Customer's Payment Instrument, or from the Customer in connection with his or her use of a Payment Instrument (e.g., a security code, a PIN number, 
credit limits, account balances, or the customer's zip code when provided as part of an address verification system).  Without limiting the foregoing, such 



            Rev. NAPSTAND 01/2012                        Page 14 of 14 
 
information may include a the Payment Instrument account number and expiration date, the Customer’s name or date of birth, PIN data, security code 
data (such as CVV2 and CVC2), and any data read, scanned, imprinted, or otherwise obtained from the Payment Instrument, whether printed thereon, or 
magnetically, electronically, or otherwise stored thereon.  For the avoidance of doubt, the data elements that constitute Payment Instrument Information 
shall be treated according to their corresponding meanings as “cardholder data” and “sensitive authentication data” as such terms are used in the then 
current PCI DSS. 
 “Refund” means any refund or credit issued for any reason, including, without limitation, for a return of merchandise or cancellation of services, and any 
adjustment of a Transaction. 
“Refund Policy” means a written policy with regard to Refunds. 
“Retrieval Request” means a request for information by a Customer or Payment Brand relating to a claim or complaint concerning a Transaction.   
“Security Standards” means all rules, regulations, standards, or guidelines adopted or required by the Payment Brands or the Payment Card Industry 
Security Standards Council relating to privacy, data security, and the safeguarding, disclosure, and handling of Payment Instrument Information, including, 
without limitation, the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (“PCI DSS”), Visa’s Cardholder Information Security Program (“CISP”), Discover’s 
Information Security & Compliance Program, American Express’s Data Security Operating Policy, MasterCard’s Site Data Protection Program (“SDP”), 
Visa’s Payment Application Best Practices (“PABP”), the Payment Card Industry’s Payment Application Data Security Standard (“PA DSS”), MasterCard’s 
POS Terminal Security program, and the Payment Card Industry PIN Transmission Security program (PCI PTS), in each case as they may be amended 
from time to time.  
“Service Provider” means any party that processes, stores, receives, transmits, or has access to Payment Instrument Information on Merchant’s behalf, 
including, without limitation, its agents, business partners, contractors, and subcontractors.  
“Settled Transaction” means a Transaction conducted between a Customer and Merchant utilizing a Payment Instrument in which consideration is 
exchanged between the Customer and Merchant for the purchase of a good or service or the Refund of such purchase and the value for such Transaction 
is settled by the Payment Brand through Chase Paymentech to the Merchant. 
“Stored Value Card Transaction” means a Transaction in which a Customer adds or redeems value to or from a stored value card, gift card, or loyalty 
Payment Instrument issued by or on behalf of Merchant.   
“Transaction” means a transaction conducted between a Customer and Merchant utilizing a Payment Instrument in which consideration is exchanged 
between the Customer and Merchant. 
“Transaction Data” means the written or electronic record of a Transaction, including, without limitation, an authorization code or settlement record, which 
is submitted to Chase Paymentech 
“Transaction Receipt” means an electronic or paper record of a Transaction generated upon completion of a sale or Refund, a copy of which is 
presented to the Customer. 
 
Personal Guaranty.  Each Guarantor whose name and signature appears in the Application (individually a “Guarantor” and collectively the “Guarantors”) 
hereby, jointly and severally, unconditionally and irrevocably, guarantee the full, timely and continuing performance of each and every representation, 
warranty, covenant, agreement and obligation of Merchant now or hereafter arising under or in connection with the Agreement, including, without 
limitation, any indebtedness and other liabilities of Merchant created, at any time, under or in connection with the Agreement (the “Guaranteed 
Obligations”).  Each Guarantor is familiar with, and has independently reviewed books and records regarding, the financial condition of Merchant and is 
familiar with the value of any and all collateral intended to be created as security for the payment of the Guaranteed Obligations. However, no Guarantor is 
relying on such financial condition or collateral, including, without limitation, the existence of a Reserve Account (if any) as an inducement to enter into this 
Personal Guaranty. Each Guarantor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably waives any and all notices, demands and other formalities, of every kind and 
description, including, without limitation, any (i) notice of acceptance of this Personal Guaranty, (ii) notice of the incurrence of any Guaranteed Obligation, 
(iii) notice of the occurrence of any breach or default relating to or in connection with the Agreement or (iv) demand for performance or payment, 
presentment, protest, notice of protest or proof of breach or default.  This is an unconditional, irrevocable and continuing guaranty of payment and not a 
guaranty of collection.  Each Guarantor hereby acknowledges and agrees that such Guarantor is liable for the Guaranteed Obligations as primary obligor 
and Chase Paymentech, Member or any other beneficiary of the Agreement, as the case may be, may exercise their respective rights and remedies 
hereunder against one or more Guarantors, whether or not first or ever exercising their respective rights and remedies hereunder or otherwise against 
Merchant or any other guarantor or obligor or enforcing or collecting any present or future collateral securing the Guaranteed Obligations.  Each Guarantor 
hereby acknowledges and agrees that such Guarantor’s obligations and liabilities pursuant to this Personal Guaranty shall in no way be discharged, 
released or in any way affected by (i) any action taken under or in connection with the Agreement or the Guaranteed Obligations, including, without 
limitation, any assignment, renewal, extension, compromise, indulgence, forbearance, waiver, acceleration, modification, amendment or other change 
granted to Merchant or any guarantor or obligor or otherwise related thereto, (ii) the taking, holding, exchange, enforcement, waiver or release of any 
security for the performance of the Guaranteed Obligations or this Personal Guaranty, (iii) the release, in whole or in part, of Merchant or any other 
guarantor or obligor from any obligation or liability, (iv) the substitution of any one or more of the Guarantors or the acquisition of additional guarantors, (v) 
any insolvency, bankruptcy or similar proceedings involving or affecting Merchant or any other guarantor or obligor, (vi) the death, dissolution or ceasing to 
exist (whether voluntary or involuntary) of Merchant or any other guarantor or obligor or (vii) any other act, omission or circumstance whatsoever that may 
in any manner vary the risks of such Guarantor or might otherwise constitute a legal or equitable defense or discharge of such Guarantor or any other 
guarantor or obligor.  Each Guarantor hereby waives all defenses based on occurrences of the types described in clauses (i) through (vii) above. Each 
Guarantor hereby represents and warrants that such Guarantor has received, or will receive, direct or indirect benefit from the making of this Personal 
Guaranty and that the Guaranteed Obligations and such benefit has a value reasonably equivalent to or greater than the obligations and liabilities incurred 
pursuant to this Personal Guaranty.  This Personal Guaranty shall be binding on each Guarantor and such Guarantor’s heirs, administrators, legal 
representatives, successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of Chase Paymentech, Member and any other beneficiary of the Agreement, as the 
case may be, and their respective heirs, administrators, legal representatives, successors, and assigns. Neither Guarantor may, without the prior written 
consent of Chase Paymentech, assign any of its rights, powers, duties, or obligations hereunder. The Guarantors jointly and severally agree to pay 
reasonable attorneys' fees and all other costs and expenses which may be incurred by Chase Paymentech in the enforcement of this Personal Guaranty. 



RESOLUTION NO.  2016-11154B 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE ANNUAL 
PROCUREMENT OF MERCHANT CARD SERVICES WITH CHASE 
PAYMENTECH SOLUTIONS, L.L.C., IN THE UNIT AMOUNT 
PROPOSED THROUGH A JOINT PROPOSAL THROUGH A TOWN OF 
FLOWER MOUND COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
WITH AN ESTIMATED ANNUAL EXPENDITURE AMOUNT OF ONE 
HUNDRED ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS ($101,200); 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS; AND, PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to provide effective, efficient, and convenient merchant card services for the 
City’s patrons; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Duncanville has entered into an Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 
with the Town of Flower Mound for products and services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Flower Mound has taken joint competitive sealed proposals for merchant card 
services; and   
 
WHEREAS, as a result of the submittal of the best value proposal, a contract was awarded to Chase 
Paymentech Solutions, L.L.C. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Duncanville hereby approves the annual 
procurement of merchant card services with Chase Paymentech Solutions, L.L.C., through a joint 
proposal with the Town of Flower Mound Cooperative in the unit amount proposed with an 
estimated annual expenditure of $101,200. 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council of the City of Duncanville hereby authorizes the City 

Manager, or his designee, to execute the appropriate and necessary documents and/or purchase 
orders. 

 
Section 3:  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 

  
 
 
 



DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
on the 15th day of November, 2016. 
 
 
CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      David L. Green, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Mary E. Jones, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Robert E. Hager, City Attorney 
 
 
 



 
  
MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016                AGENDA ITEM:  R-4C 
 
TITLE: 
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, amending the agreement #12-27 Alarm 
Permit Management Services with PMAM Corporation for an additional one-year term and for the unit amount as stated 
in the contract with PMAM Corporation to receive twenty-two percent (22%) of fees collected as set forth in Exhibit A, 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein; authorizing the City Manager to execute Amendment 1, Exhibit A; and, 
providing for an effective date.  
 
FY 2017 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 

• Goal:  NA  
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Robert D. Brown, Jr. Chief of Police 
Richard Summerlin, C.P.A., C.G.F.O., Finance Director 
Charlie Oberrender, CPPB, Purchasing Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Request for Competitive Sealed Proposals were released in September of 2012 for a two-year contract for alarm permit 
management services.  The Duncanville City Council approved a two-year contract with PMAM Corporation for alarm 
permitting management services at its November 6, 2012 meeting (attachment #1). The original contract had two one-
year renewal options available. The Duncanville City Council approved the renewal options at its October 21, 2014 and 
October 20, 2015 regular meetings, respectively.  The final one-year renewal option expires this December 2, 2016.  In 
order to provide adequate time to solicit and evaluate a new contract, staff requests amending the existing contract to add 
an additional one-year term, taking the contract through December 2, 2017 (attachment #2). Staff has been very pleased 
with the performance of PMAM Corporation and wishes to continue the service while soliciting a new contract.  
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Prior to the spring of 2005, police department staff were responsible for the administration of the alarm permit program 
which included the processing of alarm permit applications, sending renewal notices, monitoring alarm activity, and 
assessing false alarm service charges.  The City initiated the “outsourced” alarm permit function in an effort to maintain 
net revenue levels and to achieve a 10% reduction in false alarms. The primary objectives of this “outsourced” solution 
are to drive down the number of false alarms, utilize the most advanced technology and processes to drive up compliance 
and maximize revenue all while providing a positive experience for citizens.  The reduction in false alarm calls results in 
efficiency savings for the Duncanville Police Department; reducing the number of false alarms allows police patrol staff 
to reallocate time saved on responding to false alarms to time on “frontline” public safety functions, including patrol and 
responding to service calls.  
 
Under the existing contract, PMAM Corporation collects the revenue and retains 22% and remits the remaining 78% of 
the revenue collected to the City.  The services include, but are not limited to:  deployment of a software package that 
maintains and tracks false alarm data and generates related report; distribution of alarm permit applications for renewals 

 

STAFF REPORT 



and “unregistered” users; download “call data” on a daily basis; distribution of letters, notices, and invoices to residences 
and businesses for false alarms as per the ordinance; collect fees; and  provision and management of City of Duncanville 
website portal allowing Citizens to apply for and manage alarm permit activity.  

PMAM collects the permit fee and remits to the City less their 22% service fee, which through 11 months for FY16 is 
$22,497 and the estimated total for FY16 is $24,600.  The service fee for FY17 is estimated to be $25,949. 

PMAM Corporation is headquartered in Dallas, Texas and is the current alarm permit management services firm for the 
cities of Allen, Colleyville, Haltom City, Houston, McKinney, Richardson, Richland Hills, and Rowlett. PMAM 
Corporation has been the City’s alarm permit management provider for over ten years (Since April of 2005).   
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
$92,000 is allocated in the FY17 General Fund revenue budget for this activity.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, amending the 
agreement #12-27 Alarm Permit Management Services with PMAM Corporation for an additional one-year term and for 
the unit amount as stated in the contract with PMAM Corporation to receive twenty-two percent (22%) of fees collected 
as set forth in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein; authorizing the City Manager to execute 
Amendment 1, Exhibit A; and, providing for an effective date.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Amendment Signed 
Attachment 2 - Original Proposal Evaluation Tabulation 
Attachment 3 - Resolution 
 







CITY OF DUNCANVILLE
ALARM PERMIT MANAGEMENT SERVICES

RFCSP EVALUATION

NAME OF COMPANY % OF COLLECTIONS 
RETAINED

% OF COLLECTIONS 
RETAINED BY 

PROPOSER - MAX. 
35 POINTS

ABILITY TO 
SATISFY 

FUNCTIONAL 
REQUIREMENTS - 
MAX. 20 POINTS

ABILITY TO 
DELIVER - 
MAX. 20 
POINTS

ABILITY TO 
SATISFY 
TECHNICAL 

REQUIREMENTS -
MAX. 25 
POINTS

TOTAL-MAX. 
100 POINTS

PMAM Corporation 22.00 35.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 95.0

AOT Public Safety Corporation 22.50 34.0 19.0 18.0 20.0 91.0

9/8/2014

ATTACHMENT 2



RESOLUTION NO.  2016-11154C 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS, AMENDING THE AGREEMENT #12-27 
ALARM PERMIT MANAGEMENT SERVICES WITH PMAM 
CORPORATION FOR AN ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERM AND FOR 
THE UNIT AMOUNT AS STATED IN THE CONTRACT WITH PMAM 
CORPORATION TO RECEIVE TWENTY-TWO PERCENT (22%) OF 
FEES COLLECTED AS SET FORTH IN EXHIBIT A, WHICH IS 
ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT 1, 
EXHIBIT A; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
  
WHEREAS, it is desired to provide billing and collection services for City of Duncanville alarm 

permits; and  
  
WHEREAS, competitive sealed proposals were obtained per RFCSP# 12-27; and   
 
WHEREAS, the term of the contract is two-years with two one-year renewal options if both 

parties mutually agree; and 
 
WHEREAS, both of the renewal options of the contract have been performed satisfactorily; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor and City staff have expressed interest to amend the agreement for an 

additional one year term; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas desires to amend the agreement 

for an additional one year term for alarm permit management services. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Duncanville does hereby approve the 
amendment of the alarm permit management services with PMAM Corporation in the unit 
amount proposed, as contained in the contract, with PMAM Corporation to receive twenty two 
percent (22%) of fees collected to add an additional one year term, as set forth in Exhibit A, 
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council of the City of Duncanville hereby authorizes the City 

Manager, or his designee, to execute Amendment 1, Exhibit A. 
   
Section 3:  That this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

 



DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
on the 15th day of November, 2016. 
 
 
CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       David L. Green, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Mary E. Jones, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Robert E. Hager, City Attorney 
 
 
 



         
 

MEETING DATE:  November 15, 2016                AGENDA ITEM:  R-5A 
 
TITLE: 
Consider an Ordinance of the City of Duncanville, Texas, amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Duncanville by 
amending Section 19-107 (“Prohibited on Specific Streets”) of Article VI (“Stopping, Standing and Parking”) of Chapter 
19 (“Traffic”) by adding new Subsections (91) and (92) to prohibit stopping, standing and parking on certain portions of 
South Greenstone Lane; providing a repealing clause; providing a savings clause; providing a severability clause; 
providing a penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each offense; and providing an 
effective date. 
 
FY 2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN:  N/A 

• CAPSTONE:  Create high quality neighborhoods and parks 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Michael J. Hasler, P.E., Director of Public Works 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Residents located on the streets emptying into the 600 to 800 blocks of South Greenstone Lane have recently requested 
"No Parking" signs be implemented due to lack of visibility when leaving their alleyways during sports tournament and 
game parking on the weekends at Byrd Middle School.  Vehicles park on both sides of South Greenstone Lane from West 
Wheatland Road to Huntington Drive and along the side streets of Coventry Lane, Redman Drive and Wellington Drive.  
There is an existing "No Parking" area on the east side of South Greenstone Lane from West Wheatland Road to a point 
350 feet south.  However, during tournaments, cars park up to the intersections in violation of the required distance from 
STOP signs and have been seen angled on the corners and partially blocking alleys. 
 
The proposed ordinance repeals and replaces Chapter 19, Traffic, Article VI, Stopping, Standing and Parking, Section 
19-107, Prohibited on Specific Streets, of the Code of Ordinances, to add two new subsections to prohibit parking on the 
east side of South Greenstone Lane from Huntington Drive to 145 feet north, and on the west side of South Greenstone 
Lane from West Wheatland Road to Huntington Drive on Saturdays and Sundays (Attachment 1). 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
By placing and enforcing existing and new "No Parking" limits, residents will have unimpeded access on South 
Greenstone Lane, creating a much safer ingress and egress from the alleyways.  Council approval is required to amend the 
Code of Ordinances to allow this change to take place. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Funds are available in the Traffic Operations Fund balance to make the required signage. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of an Ordinance of the City of Duncanville, Texas, amending the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Duncanville by amending Section 19-107 (“Prohibited on Specific Streets”) of Article VI (“Stopping, Standing 
and Parking”) of Chapter 19 (“Traffic”) by adding new Subsections (91) and (92) to prohibit stopping, standing and 
parking on certain portions of South Greenstone Lane; providing a repealing clause; providing a savings clause; providing 

STAFF REPORT 



a severability clause; providing a penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each 
offense; and providing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Proposed "No Parking" Exhibit 
Attachment  2 - Ordinance 
 



ATTACHMENT 1

ccaldwell
Typewritten Text



ORDINANCE NO.  2293 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS, AMENDING 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DUNCANVILLE BY 
AMENDING SECTION 19-107 (“PROHIBITED ON SPECIFIC STREETS”) OF 
ARTICLE VI (“STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING”) OF CHAPTER 19 
(“TRAFFIC”) BY ADDING NEW SUBSECTIONS (91) AND (92) TO PROHIBIT 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING ON CERTAIN PORTIONS OF SOUTH 
GREENSTONE LANE; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($200.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS: 

 
 SECTION 1. That Section 19-107 (“Prohibited on Specific Streets”) of Article VI 

(“Stopping, Standing and Parking”) of Chapter 19 (“Traffic”) shall be and is hereby amended to 

prohibit stopping, standing and parking on certain portions of South Greenstone Lane; which 

shall hereinafter read as follows: 

“CHAPTER 19 
 

TRAFFIC 
 
. . . . . 

ARTICLE VI 
 

STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 
 
. . . . . 
 
Sec. 19-107 PROHIBITED ON SPECIFIC STREETS 
 

 It shall be unlawful and an offense for the driver or owner, or for the owner to 
suffer or permit the driver of any vehicle to stop, stand or park a vehicle at any time upon 
the streets described herein as follows, when signs are erected or curbs are painted on 
such streets giving notice thereof: 
 

. . . . . 



 
(91) On the east side of South Greenstone Lane, from the point of its 
intersection with Huntington Drive to a point 145 feet north of Huntington Drive 
on Saturdays and Sundays. 
 
(92) On the west side of South Greenstone Lane, from the point of its 
intersection with West Wheatland Road to its point of intersection with 
Huntington Drive on Saturdays and Sundays.” 

 
 SECTION 2. That all ordinances of the City of Duncanville in conflict with the provisions 

of this ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City of 

Duncanville not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 SECTION 3. That an offense committed before the effective date of this ordinance is 

governed by the prior law and the provisions of the Code of Ordinances, as amended, in effect when 

the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 

 SECTION 4. That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 

section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same 

shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision thereof other 

than the part so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity 

of the Code of Ordinances as a whole. 

 SECTION 5. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or 

terms of this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Duncanville, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be 

punished by a fine not to exceed the sum of two hundred dollars ($200.00) for each offense. 

 SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage and the 

publication of the caption as the law and Charter in such cases provide. 

  



DULY PASSED by the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, on the 15th day of 

November, 2016. 

APPROVED: 

 
 
      _______________________________ 
      MAYOR 
 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 

 _______________________________ 
      CITY SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 

  
 



 
 

MEETING DATE:   November 15, 2016                                            AGENDA ITEM: R-5B      

 
TITLE:  
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, approving an agreement between the City of 
Duncanville and the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, awarding a hotel occupancy tax 
grant to the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce located at 300 E. Wheatland Road in an amount not to exceed $5,000 for 
FY 16-17 to add a Visitor Center Building Sign; authorizing the City Manager to execute the agreement; and, providing 
an effective date. 
 
FY 2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 

1. CAPSTONES: 1. Most engaged citizens in America;  3.  Be a youth sports tourism destination 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Jessica James, Economic Development Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The Duncanville Chamber of Commerce has requested grant funding to assist them with the purchase of a Visitor Center 
Sign to their building as they are serving as the Official Visitor Center for the City of Duncanville. This will create more 
visibility for the Visitor Center.  

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code states that Hotel Occupancy Taxes can be used for the operation of visitor information 
center.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
This item was not budgeted for in the approved FY 16-17 City Budget and would take a budget amendment; however 
funds are available in the Hotel Motel Tax Fund for this grant.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, approving an 
agreement between the City of Duncanville and the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, 
awarding a hotel occupancy tax grant to the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce located at 300 E. Wheatland Road in an 
amount not to exceed $5,000 for FY 16-17 to add a Visitor Center Building Sign; authorizing the City Manager to execute 
the agreement; and, providing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Grant Application  
• Agreement 
• Resolution   

STAFF REPORT 



















STATE  OF  TEXAS        § 

COUNTY OF DALLAS   § 

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS AND THE DUNCANVILLE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

FOR EXPENDITURE OF HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUNDS 
 

This Hotel Tax Funding Agreement (AGREEMENT) is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Duncanville, Texas (CITY) and the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce (ORGANIZATION). 

 
WHEREAS, the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce  has requested a Hotel Occupancy Tax grant 

to purchase a Visitor Center building  sign to positively promote Duncanville and the Visitor Center to out-
of-town visitors; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Duncanville has considered the request and believes that the 

Duncanville Visitor Center, provided by the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce, directly enhances and 
promotes tourism in the city; and   

 
WHEREAS, the goal of this AGREEMENT is to assist visitors to the City of Duncanville, thus  

Directly enhancing and promoting tourism as outlined in Chapter 351 of the State of Texas Tax Code; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed upon by and between the CITY and the Duncanville 
Chamber of Commerce as follows: 

 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
Section 1. Purpose. The purpose of this AGREEMENT is for the Duncanville Chamber of 

Commerce to utilize City of Duncanville Hotel Occupancy Taxes to purchase a Visitor Center sign in 
order to promote the Official Duncanville Visitor Center to out-of-town visitors.  

 
Section 2. Obligation of the ORGANIZATION. The ORGANIZATION shall use all of the 

awarded funds provided by the CITY in accordance with Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code and the 
ORGANIZATION’S funding application by purchasing a Visitor Center building sign consisting of the 
words Visitor Center matching the same size and construction of the current Chamber of Commerce 
letters on the Chamber of Commerce building which is generally depicted in attached Exhibit 1,; and all 
work must be completed in compliance with City, State, and Federal Laws.   

 
Section 3. Reporting Requirements of the ORGANIZATION. The ORGANIZATION shall 

deliver a Post Event Form with the following within fifteen (15) business days after the sign is completed 
and prior to September 29, 2017:   

 
a. copies of all canceled checks for the project including from the sign company and electrician; 

and 
b. a copy of the approved City of Duncanville sign permit; and  
c. before and after pictures of the building.     
 
City Hotel Occupancy Funds shall be exclusively used for the purchase of the Visitor Center sign 

as covered under this AGREEMENT. Those funds not used in accordance with this AGREEMENT must 
be repaid in full to the City of Duncanville. A completed Post Event Form must be submitted in order for 



the Chamber to be eligible for consideration of future grants. A partial or incomplete form will not be 
accepted. 

 
Section 4. Authorization of Payment. Subject to the ORGANIZATION’S satisfactory 

performance and compliance with the terms of this AGREEMENT, the CITY agrees to pay the grant 
made herein to the ORGANIZATION in an amount not to exceed $5,000 from Hotel Occupancy Tax 
funds.  The payment will be made within thirty (30) days of providing the approved Post Event Form with 
copies of the invoices from the contractors for completed work and the City of Duncanville approved sign 
permit receipt. 

 
Section 5. Appeal Process. If the ORGANIZATION wishes to make any appeal of the decisions 

of the CITY regarding the grant made herein, the ORGANIZATION must present their appeal in writing 
within ten (10) business days of funding denial to the City Manager. 

 
Section 6. Rights. The City of Duncanville has the right, at any time, to inspect the books or 

records of the ORGANIZATION that may relate to the performance of this AGREEMENT. The CITY, at 
its sole expense, has the right to conduct an audit of the ORGANIZATION, event, or project. 

 
Section 7. Term. The AGREEMENT shall become effective as of December 1, 2016, and the 

AGREEMENT shall terminate on September 30, 2017, or once the terms have been met, whichever 
occurs first. Either party does hereby reserve the right to terminate this agreement without cause upon ten 
(10) days written notice. Termination and notice shall constitute final payment without any further 
obligation of either parties past the date of termination.  

 
Section 8. Recapture Provision. In the event the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce does not 

comply with the terms of this AGREEMENT, is otherwise in default, or fails to appropriately spend the 
funds in accordance with State law, or falsifies any documents required under this agreement as provided 
herein, the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce, pursuant to the provisions herein shall refund the CITY an 
amount equal to the sum of the Grant Payments actually paid by the CITY to the Duncanville Chamber of 
Commerce immediately preceding the date of such termination. If the payment is not refunded within 30 
days of termination, interest on the refund amount, at the rate periodically announced by the Wall Street 
Journal as the prime or base commercial lending rate, or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or 
cease to announce a prime or base lending rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to time 
announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any other New York money center bank selected by the CITY) as its 
prime or base commercial lending rate, from the date of termination until paid. 

 
Section 9. Indemnification. The ORGANIZATION agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless the CITY, City Council, its officers, agents and employees, against any and all claims, lawsuits, 
judgments, cause of action, costs and expenses for personal injury (including death), property damage or 
other harm for which recovery of damages is sought, suffered by any person or persons, that may arise out 
of or be occasioned by the ORGANIZATION’s breach of any of the terms or provisions of this 
AGREEMENT, or by any negligent act or omission of the ORGANIZATION, its officers, agents, 
servants, employees, contractors, or subcontractors, in the performance of this AGREEMENT; except that 
the indemnity provided for in this paragraph shall not apply to any liability resulting from the sole 
negligence of the CITY, its officers, agents, employees or separate contractors, and in the event of joint 
and concurrent negligence of both the ORGANIZATION and the CITY under Texas law and without 
waiving any defenses of the parties under Texas law. The provisions of this paragraph are solely for the 
benefit of the parties hereto and not intended to create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any 
other person or entity. Both parties expressly agree that this AGREEMENT does not assign any 
responsibility for civil liability to the CITY that may arise by virtue of this AGREEMENT. 

 
Section 10. Default. The CITY reserves the right to terminate this AGREEMENT if the 

ORGANIZATION fails to comply with any term of the AGREEMENT, including the inability of the 



ORGANIZATION to conform to any change required by federal, and state or local laws or regulations. 
The CITY shall provide written notification to the ORGANIZATION of the termination of this 
AGREEMENT within thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination. The CITY may terminate 
the  AGREEMENT for breach of any provision of  this AGREEMENT, upon written notice of the breach 
and the ORGANIZATION shall have ten (10) days after receipt of the written notice in which to cure the 
breach to the satisfaction of the CITY. 

 
Section 11. Notice. All notices required or permitted under this AGREEMENT shall be in  

writing and shall be delivered in person or mailed as follows: 
 
To the CITY at: 
 
City of Duncanville  
Attn.:  Kevin Hugman, City Manager 
203 E. Wheatland Rd. 
Duncanville, TX 75116 
 
 
To the ORGANIZATION at: 

 
Duncanville Chamber of Commerce 
Attn.: Steve Martin 
300 E. Wheatland Rd 
Duncanville, TX 75116  
  
 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Section 12. Entire Agreement. This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire agreement of the 
parties regarding the subject matter contained herein. The parties may not modify or amend this 
AGREEMENT, except by written agreement approved by the governing bodies of each party and duly 
executed by both parties. 

 
Section 13. Approval.  This AGREEMENT has been duly and properly approved by each party’s 

governing body and constitutes a binding obligation on each party. 
 
Section 14. Assignment. Except as otherwise provided in this AGREEMENT, a party may not 

assign this AGREEMENT or subcontract the performance of services without first obtaining the written 
consent of the other party. 

 
Section 15. Non-Waiver. A party’s failure or delay to exercise right or remedy does not 

constitute a waiver of the right or remedy.  An exercise of a right or remedy under this AGREEMENT 
does not preclude the exercise of another right or remedy.  Rights and remedies under this AGREEMENT 
are cumulative and are not exclusive of other rights or remedies provided by law. 

 
Section 16. Paragraph Headings. The various paragraph headings are inserted for convenience of 

reference only, and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this AGREEMENT or any section 
thereof. 

 

Section 17. Attorney Fees. In any lawsuit concerning this AGREEMENT, the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees from the nonprevailing party, plus all out-of-pocket 
expenses such as deposition costs, telephone calls, travel expenses, expert witness fees, court costs, and 
their reasonable expenses, unless otherwise prohibited by law. 



Section 18. Severability. If  any  of  the  terms,  sections,  subsections,  sentences,  clauses,  
phrases,  provisions, covenants  or  conditions  of  this  AGREEMENT  are  for  any  reason  held  to  be  
invalid,  void  or unenforceable,  the  remainder  of  the  terms,  sections,  subsections,  sentences,  clauses, 
phrases,  provisions,  covenants  or  conditions  of  this  AGREEMENT  shall  remain  in  full  force and 
effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated. 

 
 

Section 19. Venue. The parties agree that all disputes that arise of this AGREEMENT are 
governed by the laws of the State of Texas and venue for all purposes herewith shall be in Dallas County, 
Texas. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and ORGANIZATION make and execute this 

AGREEMENT to be effective this  day of  , 2016.    
  

 
 
CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS ORGANIZATION 

 
 

Kevin Hugman Steve Martin 
City Manager Duncanville Chamber of Commerce  

 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 

  Mary E. Jones 
  City Secretary 



RESOLUTION NO.  2016-11155B 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF DUNCANVILLE AND THE DUNCANVILLE CHAMBER 
OF COMMERCE, ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A”, AWARDING 
A HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX GRANT TO THE DUNCANVILLE 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE LOCATED AT 300 E. WHEATLAND 
ROAD IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $5,000 FOR FY 16-17, TO 
ADD A VISITOR CENTER BUILDING SIGN; AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AND, 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City is authorized by Chapter 351 of the Texas Property Tax Code to levy  a  

hotel  occupancy  tax  to  be  used  to  directly  enhance  and  promote  tourism  and  the convention and 
hotel industry; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has, by ordinance, imposed a local hotel occupancy tax; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce has requested a Hotel Occupancy Tax 
grant to promote the official Duncanville Visitor Center through a Visitor Center Sign to positively 
promote Duncanville to out-of-town visitors; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Duncanville has considered the request and believes that the 
Duncanville Visitor Center, provided by the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce, directly enhances and 
promotes tourism in the city. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1: That the City of Duncanville, Texas hereby approves an agreement 

between the City of Duncanville and the Duncanville Chamber of Commerce attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” awarding a Hotel Occupancy Tax Grant in an amount not to exceed $5,000 to the 
Duncanville Chamber of Commerce for a Visitor Center Building Sign. 

 
Section 2: That the City Council of the City of Duncanville hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute the necessary documents to conform to this resolution as appropriate. 
 

Section 3: This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Duncanville, 

Texas, on the 15th day of November, 2016. 
 

 
CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
           _________________________________   
       David L. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mary E. Jones, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

________________________________ 
Robert E. Hager, City Attorney 



 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 15, 2016                                                 AGENDA ITEM:  R-5C 
 
 
TITLE: 
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, supporting in principle the Texas Central 
High Speed Train Project from Houston to the North Texas Region. 
 
FY 2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN:   

•  CAPSTONE 5:  Create multi-modal transportation alternatives 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Charles Smith, Assistant City Manager 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
On November 3, 2016, Mayor David Green received a request from Mr. David Arbuckle of Texas Central Partners, LLC, 
requesting the City of Duncanville consider passing a resolution in favor of the development of a high-speed rail corridor 
in Texas.  Texas Central Partners is a private company developing a high-speed rail line between Dallas/Fort Worth and 
Houston.  It plans to use proven technology based on that used by the Central Japan Railway Company, their partner in 
the project.  Formerly, in 2009, they were known as Lone Star High Speed Rail. 
 
The company plans to use trains that are based on the N700 Series Shinkansen, and has indicated that the journey time 
would be less than 90 minutes, as opposed to a minimum 4 hours by car.  Some studies suggest by the year 2035, 
congestion along the Interstate 45 corridor will result in vehicular travel of approximately 6.5 hours between Dallas/Fort 
Worth and Houston.  Texas Central Partners has indicated that service on the line could start as early as 2020. 
 
The Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) and TxDOT are working with the Texas Central Partners on their 
Environmental Impact Statement, required by the National Environmental Policy Act.  TxDOT will provide technical 
assistance with study efforts and help coordinate public and stakeholder involvement.  Constructing track between Dallas 
and Houston would cost an estimated $10 billion in private investor funding with no public funds expected. 
 
In addition to completing their Environmental Impact Statement, Texas Central Partners is engaged in offering up-front 
payments to property owners, along the specified route, for purchase options that give them until December 2019 to 
complete the purchase of the property and pay the owners the remainder owed. 
 
In June 2016, the North Central Texas Council of Government’s Regional Transportation Council (NCTCOG-RTC) 
passed a resolution, approving a memorandum of understanding with Texas Central Partners high-speed rail initiative, 
calling on close coordination of member counties, its 230+ member governments, and other transportation industries in 
order to “maximize the opportunities for connectivity for the benefit of generations of Texans.”  Likewise, in September 
2016, the City of Irving, Texas, also passed a resolution in support of the high-speed rail project. 
 
High-speed rail offers the promise of quick, efficient, safe, and economical transportation between the Dallas/Fort Worth 
Metroplex and the Houston area.  Duncanville and the other southern sector cities are primed to benefit from Texas 

STAFF REPORT 



Central’s efforts to establish the first, true high-speed train in the Western Hemisphere.  With a terminal in South Dallas 
near the South East corner of the intersection of Interstates 35 and 30, anyone traveling from there will find Duncanville 
convenient. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
As stated in an article from The Texas Tribune, dated July 26, 2016, the Federal Surface Transportation Board ruled 
recently it did not need to grant approval for the project to Texas Central Partners, because the project lay outside its 
jurisdiction (because it is totally within the State of Texas).  This clears the path for the project to be controlled in its 
entirety by the State of Texas Legislature. 
 
While there are no plans for the line to cross into the borders of the City of Duncanville, the project will have county, 
regional, and statewide impacts for many years, therefore, affecting our citizens.  According to the article, “the project has 
strong support from local officials and residents in both Houston and Dallas, but residents of the rural counties along the 
planned route remain staunchly opposed.  State lawmakers who represent those communities tried last session to pass 
measures blocking the project, but they were unsuccessful.”  Besides issues regarding eminent domain as well as the 
fundamental change to the appearance of prime grazing and pasture land, some believe the high-speed rail project will 
ultimately be subsidized in the long-term by Texas taxpayers.   
 
When Texas Central Partners submitted their petition to the Federal Surface Transportation Board, “several U.S. 
Representatives from Texas also submitted comments to the Board, with Democrats Eddie Bernice Johnson of Dallas and 
Gene Green of Houston joining Republican Blake Farenthold of Corpus Christi in support of Texas Central's petition, and 
Republicans Joe Barton of Ennis, Kevin Brady of The Woodlands and Bill Flores of Bryan against the firm's claims.” 
 
During the 2015 Texas legislative session, several attempts were put forward to stop the project including restricting 
Texas Central Partners from utilizing eminent domain to gain access to private lands as well as a budget rider to prevent 
TxDOT from spending any state funds in assistance of the project.  Both efforts failed.  
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
None 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider approving a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, supporting in principle the Texas 
Central High Speed Train Project from Houston to the North Texas Region. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
High-Speed-Low-impact Factsheet.pdf 
Train Technology.pdf 
Resolution 



High Speed, Low Impact
This state-of-the-art high-speed rail project will connect North Texas and Houston in less than 90 minutes, using the most 
efficient and environmentally friendly mass transportation system in the world. 

The Series N700-I Bullet is an electric “bullet train” that has been refined over a 50-year history of service in Japan to consume 
1/8th less energy per seat and expend 1/12th of the carbon per passenger mile, as compared to a typical commercial jet. With 
significantly lower emissions per passenger mile, this train provides an eco-friendly transportation option for those traveling 
between Texas’ top two economic powerhouses. Plus, fewer cars on the road means fewer contaminants from highway runoff 
flowing into streams and other bodies of water.

Once constructed, this train will be the first high-speed railway in the entire Western Hemisphere, setting an economic 
precedent for environmentally friendly mass transportation projects in the future. 

RESPECT FOR THE LAND, 
COMMUNITIES AND WILDLIFE

To minimize the impact on the surrounding 
communities and environment, current plans are 

for the train to run mainly on elevated tracks and 
berms along existing right of ways. These design 

features will make it easier for builders to avoid 
negatively impacting streams, wetlands, floodplains 

and other natural and cultural features, while still 
allowing for the free movement of wildlife, 

pedestrians and vehicles. 

During construction, there will be silt fences and straw 
bales installed to minimize runoff into any nearby bodies 

of water, wetlands, roads or other sensitive areas. And, at 
completion, the vegetation will be restored along with 

other erosion control measures, as needed.

CONSTRAINING NOISE POLLUTION

Through decades of applied research, this technology has 
evolved into one of the quietest railways in the world. It 
currently operates in dense urban environments in 
Japan—where noise pollution regulations are strict compared 
to other parts of the world.

AT A GLANCE

High-speed rail will help Texas efficiently handle growth, while 
relieving stress on the environment. 

CONSIDER THIS:  

Fewer cars on the road 
mean less emissions and 
contaminants that harm air 
and water quality. 

In Japan, bullet trains emit 
just 1/12th the amount of 
carbon as a typical 
commercial jet.* 

This HSR technology is 
entirely electric.

Tell your elected officials that 
you support moving Texas forward 
with high-speed rail’s eco-friendly 
technology: 

www.TimeToRideTX.com/environment/

The populations of North 
Texas and Houston are 
projected to roughly 
double by 2035. 

Auto traffic between the
two regions is expected to 
increase by about 100% 
by 2035.

High-speed rail will provide 
an attractive alternative to 
hundreds of thousands of 
auto passengers every year. 

*Data based on a Tokyo to Osaka line.



Texas Central:
21st Century Transportation Technology

21st Century transportation is coming to the Lone Star State. Texas Central is developing a 
high-speed rail system, which will provide a safer and more efficient way for Texans to 
move between Dallas and Houston – in less than 90 minutes.

Texas Central works closely with Central Japan Railway Company (JRC) in the 
development of this project and the N700-I Bullet train system, which is based on 
fifth-generation Shinkansen technology.

The Tokaido Shinkansen has been in operation in Japan since 1964. Today, JRC operates 
323 high-speed trains and transports an average of 424,600 passengers each day between 
Tokyo, Nagoya and Osaka. Their average annual “delay” is less than one minute.

Because the N700 is less susceptible to service interruptions than other modes of travel, 
high-speed rail will be an all-of-the-time transportation alternative. Further, because trains 
in Texas will not be a part of a national system, service will not suffer from spillover 
problems elsewhere in the national transportation system.

JRC’s technologies and practices have a safety record unmatched by any other system in 
the world—over fifty years of service without a single loss-of-life accident during operation.

This level of safety directly reflects JRC’s commitment to safety, including:
 
     •  Adoption of a total system approach that seamlessly integrates signaling, infrastructure 

design, track work, communications, power supply, operations, maintenance, rolling 
stock and the system safety plan into a coherent whole.  

     •  A completely separated track system that is dedicated solely to high-speed rail service, 
thereby precluding any possible encounter with freight traffic, motor vehicles, wildlife or 
pedestrians.  

     •  Use of JRC’s state of the art and proprietary Automatic Train Control (ATC) system, 
which will provide equivalent or better safety-levels than those in use in the U.S. today.  

Photo of the N700 used under permission of JR Central



RESOLUTION NO.  2016-11155C 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS, SUPPORTING IN PRINCIPLE THE 
TEXAS CENTRAL HIGH SPEED TRAIN PROJECT FROM HOUSTON 
TO THE NORTH TEXAS REGION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the passenger rail station will be built south of downtown Dallas, complementing 

and helping to accelerate the growth in South Dallas and the Best Southwest communities; and  
 

WHEREAS,  a strong transportation system is fundamental to the region’s quality of life and 
economic vitality, attracting new businesses and generating new jobs; and  
 

WHEREAS,  the project is estimated to create 10,000 full-time construction jobs each year 
during the anticipated four-year construction period, and 1,000 full-time jobs after the system goes into 
revenue service; and 
 

WHEREAS,  strong economic growth and increased populations are projected in Texas over 
the  next 30 years and much of the new growth will occur within the Best Southwest communities, North 
Texas and Houston regions; and 
 

WHEREAS, traffic congestion in North Texas and Houston is expected to double by the year 
2035; and 

 
WHEREAS, the existing, plus committed, infrastructure for highway modes will be 

inadequate to address the increased interaction between Texas cities as a result of this growth; and 
 
WHEREAS, the implementation of the high speed passenger train provides an efficient, safe 

and cost-efficient mode of transportation, shifting a significant volume off existing and committed 
highways, and 

 
WHEREAS, the train project by Texas Central will connect North Texas and Houston in under 

90 minutes at speeds in excess of 200 miles per hour; and 
 
WHEREAS, the train tracks will be grade separated, thereby ensuring there are no 

intersections with roadways or rail tracks; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project provides an alternative to additional taxpayer-funded construction and 

reduces carbon emissions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project is projected to generate a direct impact of $36 billion to the Texas 

economy over the next 25 years; and 
 



WHEREAS,  taxing entities along the proposed route will receive an estimated $2.5 billion in 
property taxes over 25 years from Texas Central; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Texas to Houston high-speed train project will be privately developed 

and will not take public money for its operations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project will be good for the Best Southwest communities, the region and the 

state. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1: That the City of Duncanville, Texas supports in principle the Texas 

Central High-Speed Train Project from Houston to the North Texas Region. 
 
SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its final date of 

passage.  
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
on the 15th day of November, 2016. 
 
 
CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      David L. Green, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
__________________________________ 
Mary E. Jones, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Robert Hager, City Attorney 



 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 15, 2016                                      AGENDA ITEM:  R-5D 
 
 
TITLE: 
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, adopting the City of Duncanville City 
Council Travel Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, defining necessary expenses incurred by a City Councilmember, 
and providing an effective date. 
 
FY 2015-2016 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN:   
N/A 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Charles Smith, Assistant City Manager 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The City Council regularly attends various functions within the Metroplex as part of their official duties.  If a City 
Councilmember wishes to have a guest attend the event, the cost of admission and any meal served in conjunction with 
the event for the guest is borne by the City Councilmember. 

During the September 13th and November 1st briefing sessions, City Council expressed an interest in having a policy 
permitting reimbursement for expenses incurred for admission and meal, for a City Councilmember’s guest attending a 
local event with them.  The City Council also indicated they wished to have this reimbursement policy apply only to local 
events, typically attended by the City Council as a whole. 

Finally, the City Council wishes their travel policy to reflect reimbursement for meals and expenses incurred during 
travel, upon presentation of receipts, as opposed to receiving a daily per diem. 

POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Article II, Section 2.03 (Compensation) states, “Members of the Council shall serve without pay or compensation, 
provided, however, they shall be entitled to reimbursement of necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their 
official duties when approved by the Council.” 
 
The attached policy defines “necessary expenses” as the cost of admission and meal incurred by the City Councilmember, 
for a guest, while attending a local event with them.  The policy further defines a local event, as well as provides a 
definition for a guest.  Finally, the policy is designed to reimburse City Councilmembers for meals and expenses incurred 
during travel, upon presentation of receipts, as opposed to receiving a daily per diem. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
General Fund 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, adopting the City of 
Duncanville City Council Travel Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, defining necessary expenses incurred by a City 
Councilmember, and providing an effective date. 

STAFF REPORT 



ATTACHMENTS: 
Council Travel Policy 
Resolution 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-11155D 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS, ADOPTING THE CITY OF DUNCANVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL TRAVEL POLICY, ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT 
“A”, DEFINING NECESSARY EXPENSES INCURRED BY A CITY 
COUNCILMEMBER AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Charter of the City of Duncanville, Article II, Section 2.03 

(Compensation) states, in part, City Councilmembers “shall be entitled to reimbursement of 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties when approved by 
Council”, and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to adopt a formal travel policy defining the process 
of reimbursement for necessary expenses incurred while traveling during their official duties, 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that in many cases, City Councilmembers are 

accompanied by a guest when attending local events and functions, the whole of City Council 
typically attends in an official capacity, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds these local events typically charge for admission and 

the cost of a meal, in conjunction with the event, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds the cost of admission and the accompanying meal 

served in conjunction with a local event, for a guest of a City Councilmember attending the event 
with the City Councilmember, is a necessary expense incurred in the performance of their 
official duties. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1:  That the City of Duncanville City Council formally adopts the City of 
Duncanville, City Council Travel Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, which outlines the 
process of reimbursement for necessary expenses incurred while traveling during their official 
duties. 

 
Section 2:  That the City of Duncanville City Council finds the cost of admission and an 

accompanying meal, for a guest of the City Councilmember while attending the event with the 
City Councilmember, a necessary expenses subject to reimbursement or prepayment by the City. 
 



2 
 

Section 3:  That the City of Duncanville City Council permits reimbursement for only 
those necessary expenses incurred by a City Councilmember, for a guest, attending a local event, 
as defined within the policy.  

 
Section 4:  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
on the 15th day of November, 2016. 
 
 

CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      David L. Green, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
__________________________________ 
Mary E. Jones, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Robert E. Hager, City Attorney 
 



1 
 

CITY OF DUNCANVILLE 
CITY COUNCIL TRAVEL POLICY 

 

I. Transportation and Mileage Reimbursement 
 

A. Mileage will be reimbursed at the current standard rate recommended by the 
Internal Revenue Service as of January 1st and will be adjusted periodically based 
on Internal Revenue Service guidelines. 

B. Reimbursable mileage is the shortest round trip distance of : 
1. Normal work location to travel destination or 
2. Home to travel destination. 

C. Travel arrangements including airfare, hotel, etc. should be coordinated through 
the City Secretary. 

D. For transportation expenses, the lesser expense of airfare plus ground 
transportation (i.e. taxi, shuttle service) or actual mileage will be reimbursed. 
 

II. Meals and Receipts 
 

A. Meal expenses shall only be reimbursed if travel requires an overnight stay or is 
outside the 6 county area (Dallas, Tarrant, Denton, Collin, Ellis or Johnson 
counties). 

B. The City Council member should attach all receipts to the Expense Report.  All 
expenses must have an itemized receipt attached or they may not be reimbursed 
(except mileage costs).  Detailed receipts are required to verify that all individual 
items purchased are reimbursable. Total only receipts do not provide sufficient 
transparency. 

C. Only the City Council member’s meal cost will be reimbursed.  City Council 
members, who travel with others, cannot include another’s meal cost for 
reimbursement, except as permitted in Section IV, “Necessary Expenses for 
Guests of City Council Members.” 
 

III. Prohibited Items 
 

A. Items not reimbursed include, but are not limited to, the following: 
1. Alcoholic beverages 
2. Break item snacks such as soft drinks, candy, etc. 
3. In-hotel pay television or videos 
4. Movies 
5. Golf 
6. Sporting events 



2 
 

IV. Expense Reports 
 

A. City Council members who use City funds for authorized trips should submit an 
individual Travel Expense Report to the City Secretary within 30 days of 
completing the trip. 

B. All amounts expended should be listed on the Expense Report, whether paid for 
by the City Council member, through a travel advance, on a City credit card, or by 
the City.  The City Council member should list all prepaid transportation, prepaid 
lodging, prepaid registration, City credit card charges, travel advance received 
and personal expenses, and then subtract these amounts from the “Total 
Expenses” to arrive at the “Amount Due Employee” or “Amount Due City”.  If 
using the Travel Expense Report form in Excel, these amounts will be calculated 
for you automatically. 

C. The City Council member should attach all receipts to the Expense Report.  All 
expenses should have a detailed receipt attached or they may not be reimbursed 
(other than mileage costs). Airline receipts and detailed hotel receipts should be 
included, even if prepaid by the City. 

D. The Expense Report shall be assembled by the City Secretary, signed by the City 
Council member and forwarded to the City Manager or Assistant City Manager 
for final review. 

E. After the final review by the City Manager or Assistant City Manager, the 
Expense Report shall be forwarded to the Finance Department.  The Finance 
Department shall verify all itemized receipts are attached, verify all math 
calculations, and prepare a receipt for returned money, if any.  The Director of 
Finance shall review all the documentation for completeness. 
 

V. Necessary Expenses for Guests of City Council Members 
 

A. Necessary expenses incurred by a City Council member for a guest, who attends a 
local event with the City Council member, will be reimbursed. 

1. A local event is defined as one that City Council normally participates in 
as a whole, and held within Dallas, Tarrant, Denton, Collin, Ellis or 
Johnson Counties. 

2. A guest is defined as an individual whom the City Council member 
invites to the event. 

B. Necessary expenses defined under this section are admission and meal costs, if 
any, incurred by a City Council member for a guest attending a local event, with 
the City Council member. 

C. If the admission and meal costs are prepaid by the City of Duncanville, no 
additional reimbursement is permitted. 



  
 
 
MEETING DATE: November 15, 2016                AGENDA ITEM:  R-5E 
 
 
TITLE: 
Consider a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, authorizing the procurement of field surface 
soils, materials, and installation services from MasterTurf Products & Service, Inc. through a TASB Buyboard Purchasing 
Cooperative Agreement in an amount not to exceed fifty-two thousand nine hundred and seventy eight dollars ($52,978); 
authorizing the City Manager to execute the appropriate purchase orders and documents; and, providing an effective date. 

FY2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 
Goal 2.56: Implement park improvements as approved in the FY17 Budget including field improvements at Harrington 
Park, fencing at Lakeside and Lions parks, and post and cabling at Harrington Park.   
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Bart Stevenson, Parks & Recreation Director 
Charles Oberrender, Purchasing Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The current infield mixture at the Harrington Park baseball fields is largely clay with some sand and Turface that we have 
added over the years. We tend to lag behind other Best Southwest cities in playability because of the extremely poor 
draining characteristics of an infield with such a high clay percentage. As such, it is very difficult to maintain the proper 
moisture levels which results in significant maintenance challenges, especially during the spring rainy season.  
 
Benefits of the products used in the proposed reconditioning of the infields include a dramatically reduced number of 
games/practices rained out. Two products will be the proprietary ingredients that achieve this performance. MasterSeal 
Conditioner is an organic topsoil compound that will absorb more water to reduce game rain outs and firm up loose 
playing surfaces which increases player safety. MasterSeal Infield Mix is a specially blended formula designed to deliver 
the highest quality baseball and softball surfaces. Pre-mixed with conditioner, this product will last twice as long as 
traditional clay ball field products. In addition, this infield mix will reduce on-going maintenance issues, enable us to 
control surface water absorption, and prevent costly wind and rain erosion. With proper drainage characteristics and 
improved overall playability of our fields, youth baseball leagues and tournaments will benefit our citizens as well as 
encourage future visitors to our community and support the Council’s capstone of encouraging youth sports tourism in 
Duncanville. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Staff obtained a proposal from MasterTurf Products and Services, Inc. of North Richland Hills, TX for material and labor 
to perform the renovation (Attachment 1). This proposal is priced in accordance with their contract #447-14 awarded by 
the TASB BuyBoard purchasing cooperative.  The City is a member of this cooperative.  A purchase made through this 
cooperative is compliant with requirements in Chapter 271.102 of the Texas Local Government Code.  
 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 



FUNDING SOURCE: 
$48,000 has been allocated in the Innovation Fund for this project through the adoption of the FY2017 budget by City 
Council on September 20, 2016. The excess of $4,978 will be covered by potential savings in other Parks Innovation Fund 
projects or FY 2016 General Fund balance savings. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, authorizing the 
procurement of field surface soils, materials, and installation services from MasterTurf Products & Service, Inc. through a 
TASB Buyboard Purchasing Cooperative Agreement in an amount not to exceed fifty two thousand nine hundred and 
seventy eight dollars ($52,978); authorizing the City Manager to execute the appropriate purchase orders and documents; 
and, providing an effective date. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Quotation 
Attachment 2 - Resolution 



MasterTurf Products and Service, Inc. 
1852 Norwood Plaza Suite 201 Hurst, TX 76054 Office (817) 494-3222  Cell (817) 929-0166 Fax (817) 494-3322 

November 4, 2016 

Baseball Fields at Harrington Park: BuyBoard Contract 447-14 

Field 1 
Est. Quantity  Description Price     Extended Price 

180 lbs.  Masterseal Conditioner     $     2.50     $     450.00 

40 tons  Masterseal Infield Mix $      48.60     $  1,944.00 

40 tons   Freight for Infield Mix $  40.40     $  1,616.00 

    1  Tilling and Laser Grading         $ 3,500.00     $  3,500.00 

   24  Labor (Hrs.) $      47.3333     $  1,136.00 

 Total:      $  8,646.00  

Field 2 
Quantity  Description  Price     Extended Price 

180 lbs.  Masterseal Conditioner  $        2.50     $     450.00 

50 tons  Masterseal Infield Mix $      48.60     $  2,430.00 

50 tons  Freight for Infield Mix $      40.40     $  2,020.00 

    1  Tilling and Laser Grading $ 3,500.00   $  3,500.00 

   27.2112  Labor (Hrs.)  $      47.3333     $  1,288.00 

 Total:      $  9,688.00  

Field 3 
Quantity  Description  Price     Extended Price 

270 lbs.  Masterseal Conditioner     $        2.50   $     675.00 

75 tons  Masterseal Infield Mix $      48.60     $  3,645.00 

75 tons  Freight for Infield Mix $      40.40     $  3,030.00 

    1  Tilling and Laser Grading $ 3,500.00     $  3,500.00 

   14.33  Labor (Hrs.)  $      47.3333     $     678.00 

 Total:      $  11,528.00  

Field 4 
Quantity  Description  Price     Extended Price 

270 lbs.  Masterseal Conditioner     $        2.50     $     675.00 

75 tons  Masterseal Infield Mix $      48.60     $  3,645.00 



75 tons   Freight for Infield Mix $      40.40     $  3,030.00 

    1  Tilling and Laser Grading $ 3,500.00     $  3,500.00 

   14.33  Labor (Hrs.)  $      47.3333     $     678.00 

 Total:      $  11,528.00  

Field 5 
Quantity  Description  Price     Extended Price 

270 lbs.  Masterseal Conditioner     $        2.50     $     675.00 

75 tons  Masterseal Infield Mix $      48.60     $  3,645.00 

75 tons  Freight for Infield Mix $      40.40     $  3,030.00 

    1  Tilling and Laser Grading $ 3,500.00     $  3,500.00 

   15.5915  Labor (Hrs.)  $      47.3333     $     738.00 

 Total:      $   11,588.00  

Total Estimated Cost $52,978.00 



 
RESOLUTION NO.  2016-11155E 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PROCUREMENT OF 
FIELD SURFACE SOILS, MATERIALS, AND INSTALLATION 
SERVICES FROM MASTERTURF PRODUCTS & SERVICE, INC. 
THROUGH A TASB BUYBOARD PURCHASING COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED FIFTY TWO 
THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED AND SEVENTY EIGHT DOLLARS 
($52,978); AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
APPROPRIATE PURCHASE ORDERS AND DOCUMENTS; AND, 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to maintain a safe, efficient, playing surface at our baseball fields; 

and  
 
WHEREAS, the TASB BuyBoard, has taken sealed bids for Grounds Maintenance Equipment & 

Irrigation Parts, Supplies & Installation; and   
 
WHEREAS, Contract #447-14 under the TASB BuyBoard was awarded to MasterTurf Products 

& Service, Inc.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Duncanville has entered into an Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement with the TASB BuyBoard, for products and services; and   
 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Duncanville hereby approves the 
procurement of field surface soils, materials, and installation services with MasterTurf Products 
& Service, Inc., through a TASB BuyBoard, in an amount not to exceed fifty two thousand nine 
hundred seventy eight dollars ($52,978) for field improvements at Harrington Park. 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council of the City of Duncanville hereby authorizes the City 

Manager, or his designee, to execute the appropriate purchase orders and documents. 
 
Section 3:  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
 

 
 
 
 



DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Duncanville, Texas, 
on the 15th day of November, 2016. 
 
 
CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       David L. Green, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Mary E. Jones, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Robert E. Hager, City Attorney 
 



 
 

MEETING DATE:    November 15, 2016                                                    AGENDA ITEM:   R-5F 
 
 
TITLE: 
Take any action necessary as a result of Executive Session. 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 15, 2016                            AGENDA ITEM:  R-6A 
 
 
TITLE:  
Receive the Parks and Recreation Quarterly Report and Workplan Update. 
 
FY 2015-2016 CITY COUNCIL ORGANIZATIONAL WORKPLAN: 

• CAPSTONE 1:  Most engaged citizens in America 
o Goal 1:  Achieve and sustain a healthy relationship between the organization’s stakeholders 

 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Bart Stevenson, Parks and Recreation Director 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
N/A 

POLICY EXPLANATION: 
N/A 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 

RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 

STAFF REPORT 



 
 

MEETING DATE:    November 15, 2016                            AGENDA ITEM:   R-6B 
 
 
TITLE: 
Receive an Update Report regarding the Duncanville Fieldhouse. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Bart Stevenson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
Craig Brasfield, General Manager of the Duncanville Fieldhouse 

POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Craig Brasfield, General Manager of the Duncanville Fieldhouse will provide an update to the City Council regarding the 
recent activities and upcoming events at the Fieldhouse.   
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 

STAFF REPORT 


	2016-11-15 City Council Agenda
	B-1 - Discuss Agenda Items
	B-2A - Sister City Relationship - 1 - Staff Report
	B-2A - Sister City Relationship - 2 - 2017 SCI Member Application
	ES-1 - Personnel - DCEDC - 1 - Staff Report
	R-1A - Mayor's Report - 1 - Staff Report
	R-1B - Councilmembers' Reports - 1 - Staff Report
	R-1C - City Manager's Report - 1 - Staff Report
	R-2A - KDB Bus Beautification Award - Chamber - 1 - Staff Report
	R-2A - KDB Bus Beautification Award - Chamber - 2 - Proclamation
	R-2B - Native American Heritage Month - 1 - Staff Report
	R-2B - Native American Heritage Month - 2 - Proclamation
	R-2C- Small Business Saturday - 1 - Staff Report
	R-2C- Small Business Saturday - 2 - Proclamation
	R-2D - Delinquent Tax Perf Rpt - 1 - Staff Report
	R-2D - Delinquent Tax Perf Rpt - 2 - Presentation
	R-3 - Citizens' Input
	R-4A - Approval of Minutes - 1 - Staff Report
	R-4A - Approval of Minutes - 2 - October 27, 2016 Special Mtg Minutes DRAFT
	R-4A - Approval of Minutes - 3 -  November 1, 2016 Minutes DRAFT
	R-4B - Merchant Card Services - 1 - Staff Report
	R-4B - Merchant Card Services - 2 - ATTACHMENTS - RS
	R-4B - Merchant Card Services - 2a - RFP No. 20-12-A Merchant App  Agrmnt  - FINAL 6-1-12
	R-4B - Merchant Card Services - 3 - Resolution
	R-4C - Alarm Permit Management Services - 1 - Staff Report
	R-4C - Alarm Permit Management Services - 2 - Attachment
	R-4C - Alarm Permit Management Services - 2a - Proposal Evaluation- Attachment 2
	R-4C - Alarm Permit Management Services - 3 - Resolution
	R-5A - Greenstone No Parking Sat & Sun - 1 - Staff Report - MJH
	R-5A - Greenstone No Parking Sat & Sun - 2 - Attachment - MJH
	R-5A - Greenstone No Parking Sat & Sun - 3 - Ordinance 2293  - MJH
	STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING

	R-5B - Chamber of Commerce Visitor Center Sign - 1 - Staff Report - JJ -
	R-5B - Chamber of Commerce Visitor Center Sign - 2 - Application - JJ -
	R-5B - Chamber of Commerce Visitor Center Sign - 3 - Agreement JJ -
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	MISCELLANEOUS
	CITY OF DUNCANVILLE, TEXAS ORGANIZATION

	R-5B - Chamber of Commerce Visitor Center Sign - 4 - Resolution - JJ -
	R-5C - Support of High Speed Rail - 1 - Staff Report
	R-5C - Support of High Speed Rail - 2 - Fact Sheet
	R-5C - Support of High Speed Rail - 3 - Train Technology
	R-5C - Support of High Speed Rail - 4 - Resolution DRAFT
	R-5D - City Council Travel Policy - 1 - Staff Report
	R-5D - City Council Travel Policy - 2 - Resolution
	R-5D - City Council Travel Policy - 3 - Policy
	CITY COUNCIL TRAVEL POLICY

	R-5E - Infield Renovation Service - 1 - Staff Report
	R-5E - Infield Renovation Service - 2a - Quote - Attachment 1
	R-5E - Infield Renovation Service - 3 -RESOLUTION
	R-5F - Action resulting from Executive Session
	R-6A - PARD Quarterly Report, Workplan Update
	R-6B - Fieldhouse Report


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	City/County Population: Off
	CityCounty: 
	Population size: 
	Does your city currently have a sister city?: Off
	Salutation1: [Mr.]
	First Name: 
	Last Name: 
	Phone number: 
	Email address: 
	First Name_2: 
	Last Name_2: 
	Address: 
	Zip code: 
	Phone number_2: 
	Email address_2: 
	Are you a city employee?: Off
	Salutation3: [Mr.]
	First Name_3: 
	Last Name_3: 
	Title_3: 
	Organization: 
	Address_2: 
	Zip code_2: 
	Phone number_3: 
	Email address_3: 
	Do you need an invoice?: Off
	Payment method: Off
	Card No: 
	Expiration date: 
	Expiration date2: 
	CC Security Code: 
	Cardholder Name: 
	SubmitButton1: 
	Application ID: 
	Sales Rep: 
	Rep Fax: 
	Rep Phone: 
	Merchant DBA Name: Town of Flower Mound
	Business Start Month: 02
	Business Start Year: 1961
	DBA Street Address No PO Box or Paid Mail Box: 2121 Cross Timbers Rd.
	Telephone: (972) 874-6000
	City: 
	State: 
	Zip Code: 75028
	Fax: (972) 874-6460
	Name of Primary Contact: Julie Taylor, Director of Treasury Operations
	Merchant DBA Email Address: julie.taylor@flower-mound.com
	Merchant Legal Name: Town of Flower Mound
	State of Formation: TX
	Federal Tax IDEIN sole prop use SSN: 75-1366210 
	Legal Street Address: 
	Telephone_2: 
	City_2: 
	State_2: 
	Zip Code_2: 
	Fax_2: 
	Legal Email Address: 
	undefined: Off
	S Corporation: Off
	C Corporation: Off
	Partnership: Off
	Disregarded Entity1: Off
	undefined_2: Off
	undefined_3: Off
	Private Corporation: Off
	Public Corporation: Off
	undefined_4: Off
	undefined_5: Off
	Government Agency: On
	NonProfit2: Off
	undefined_6: On
	If Yes above where is the inventory located: 
	What merchandise do you sell or services do you provide: Municipal Government
	undefined_7: No
	Retail: Off
	undefined_8: No_2
	Restaurant: Off
	Lodging: Off
	Auto Rental: Off
	Cash Advance: Off
	Convenience StoreGas: Off
	Other: On
	Text5: Municipal Government
	Internet You are required to list all website addresses: Off
	undefined_9: No_3
	Text1: 
	Email statements to: On
	Legal email address: Off
	DBA email address: On
	Mail statements to see pricing: Off
	Legal address: Off
	DBA address: Off
	undefined_10: Off
	undefined_11: On
	To have retrievals faxed instead of mailed provide fax number below: (972) 874-6460
	undefined_12: 0
	undefined_13: 30
	undefined_14: 69
	undefined_15: 1
	Do you ever charge a Customer on a recurring basis: No_4
	30 Days: Off
	60 Days: Off
	90 Days: Off
	Annually: Off
	Other_2: Off
	Text4: 
	If Customers are required to pay a deposit what  of total sale: 0
	Name of Individual: 
	Text2: 
	Social Security: 
	Street Address IndividualSole Proprietor use home address No PO Box or paid mailbox: 
	Date of Birth: 
	City_3: 
	State_3: 
	Zip Code_3: 
	Telephone_3: 
	Name of Individual #2: 
	PERCENT: 
	Social Security_2: 
	Street Address IndividualSole Proprietor use home address No PO Box or paid mailbox_2: 
	Date of Birth_2: 
	City_4: 
	State_4: 
	Zip Code_4: 
	Telephone_4: 
	Name of Authorized Rep: Thomas E. Hayden
	Title: 
	Name of Bank: JPMorgan Chase Bank
	Routing Number always consists of 9 digits: 111000614
	Account Number number of digits will vary: 754177681
	Visa: On
	MasterCard: On
	DiscoverJCB: Off
	PIN Debit: Off
	Voyager: Off
	Wright Express: Off
	Gift Card: Off
	Current Payment Processor: 
	Text3: 5,500,000
	Text31: 
	Text32: 113
	Text34: 1,000
	Has Merchant ever had a breach involving lost card data or received a: No_5
	If you have an American Express SE please provide it here: 
	fill_12: 
	fill_14: 
	American Express Discount Rate: 
	Date: 
	Best phone  to contact you: (972) 874-6024
	Best time to reach you: 8am-4pm
	English: On
	Spanish: Off
	Other_3: Off
	Other language: 
	Print Name: Thomas E. Hayden, Mayor
	Date_2: 
	Print Name_2: 
	Date_3: 
	Print Name_3: 
	Date_4: 
	Print Name_4: 
	Date_5: 
	Title_2: 
	Date_6: 


